MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
growth aspirations. Your Company has already
acquired land near its Ginigera, Karnataka facility to
put up a 120,000 tonne per annum metallurgical coke
oven. The Company has appointed the Central Fuel
Research Institute as the technical advisor for this
project.

Get Set, Grow. The year that has gone by was primarily
spent getting set for the years to come. A future that
necessarily will be Indias story. And your Company
envisages a leadership role in this India story that will
unfold in the years to come.
The Indian Growth Story

Contributing to the efforts to keep the environment
pollution free, the Company plans to utilise the flue
gases from the third Mini Blast Furnace at the Ginigera,
Karnataka facility to generate power by setting up a 15
MW captive power plant. This will ensure continuous
availability of power and reduce costs as the Company
will be eligible for carbon credit.

The Indian economy continues to surge ahead as a
result of the substantial industrial and manufacturing
growth backed by sustained domestic consumption.
Although the financial year 2007  2008 experienced
a slight decline in the rate at which the economy is
growing, fortunately there appears to be no respite in
the surge in investments. This is an indicator not only
of a healthy economy but continued hope in the future
potential of the country.

The Company continues to further enrich and
benchmark its operations and capabilities with the best
in the world. The Dighe, Thane facility qualified through
the first stage audits for the certification of ISO-TS-16949
standards by the global certification company - Bureau
Veritas. The final audits will be held during the year in
progress. The Ginigera, Karnataka facility received
the TPM Excellence Award from the Japan Institute of
Plant Maintenance. The re-certification audit for TS
16949:2002 at the Ginigera, Karnataka facility has been
completed and the OHSAS 18001 : 1999  certification
awarded during the year under report.

In the year that has gone by, the country focused on
generating knowledge, acquiring technology and
establishing global benchmarks in procedures and
systems that will take this growth ahead. Your
Company too focused on these activities to ensure
that it maintained its position as the leading supplier
of speciality steel long products to global brands and
also remained the leading manufacturer of heavy duty
cranes.
Steel

Superior operations and peoples capabilities are
powered by technology. In the year under review, the
Company acquired state of the art technology at both
its facilities which will augment the manufacture of
superior quality products. The Companys products
have enjoyed a leadership position of quality in the
markets it operates and it hopes to continue holding
this position in the new globalised markets.

The steel industry witnessed a radical change in input
costs in the year under review. Increase in the input
costs of metallurgical coke, iron ore, scrap and other
materials increased the cost of making steel
substantially, during the year under review. This put
tremendous pressure on steel companies who were
thus forced to increase their selling price to mitigate
the massive increase in their costs. Nickel was the
only input that softened after a record high in May 2007,
thus resulting in a decrease in the selling price of
nickel-intensive stainless steel grades.

Getting set to grow, the Company has undertaken a
capital expenditure programme which will increase
the steel making, rolling and finishing facilities at both
the Dighe, Thane and Ginigera, Karnataka facilities.

The Company progressively effected price increases
to mitigate the rising input costs during the year under
review. Raw material security is an imperative for long
term sustainability. Focused efforts are therefore being
made by the Company to achieve higher levels of raw
material security especially of iron ore and metcoke
to meet the increased needs in line with its further

* Lecture at the Steel Summit

At Dighe, Thane:
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The modernisation programme of the Wire Rod
Mill (WRM) is progressing as per schedule and
commercial production is expected to commence
in the second quarter of the year in progress. This
will result in the coil weight increasing to 1,500

developed a duplex grade of stainless steel that is
highly corrosion resistant and of higher strength. This
grade will act as an import substitution product and
has a potential market in oil, gas and marine
applications. The Company increased its production
of spring steel which can be used in applications
across industries. Large size peeling, reeling and
polishing machines capable of producing bright bars
upto 150 mm dia. have been installed which will
automatically give the Company a strong foothold in
the extrusion industry for products which hitherto were
imported.

kgs., as per international standards, from the
present 650 kgs. The modernised mill will also
have a cooling bed that will increase the range of
the sections to be rolled and have the flexibility to
roll in straight lengths. The overall capacity
of rolling at the mills will stand increased by
120,000 tonnes per annum.


Two state-of-the-art Bell Furnaces have
commenced commercial production which will
enhance the capacity of value added products.



Various testing equipment, hot bar measuring
system and other balancing equipment, etc. have
been commissioned. These facilities will facilitate
increase in production whilst ensuring
international quality standards as per the
requirements of global customers.



The Company continues its leadership position in
the supply of steel for critical applications to global
leaders in the automobile component sector while
India continues to consolidate its position as the
automobile hub for export of vehicles as well as
components. The auto component exports industry
grew at around 20% during the year under review.
The demand for automobiles will go up with the
reduction of Excise Duty on small cars from 14% to 12%
in the recent budget. New investments of around
Rs. 300 billion have been planned by leading global
and Indian automobile manufacturers in India in the
next three years.

Two spheroidised annealing furnaces for bars are
under erection while the third shot blasting
machine for coils too is under commissioning.
At Ginigera, Karnataka:



The third mini blast furnace of 350 cubic meter
capacity was commissioned at Ginigera,
Karnataka on March 29, 2008 and has stabilised
in record time.



The steel melt shop upgradation is being
completed to cater to the enhanced production
resulting from the installation of the third mini blast
furnace.



Modernisation of the rolling mill is also in progress
and will start commercial production in the second
half of the year in progress.

The Company showcased its product capability and
technological prowess at the 9th Auto Expo held in New
Delhi from January 10  17, 2008 and also at the worlds
largest wire exhibition held from March 31  April 4,
2008 at Düsseldorf, Germany.
Industrial Machinery Division:

The above increased facilities will be shared by
the strategic alliance partners and the Companys
share will be at 58.62%.

This division is a leader in the country in the design
and manufacture of heavy duty cranes and other
sophisticated steel plant equipment. The design
capabilities of the division have been acclaimed by
global customers.

Your Company has the flexibility to constantly adapt to
changes in the market by modifying its product mix. In
the year under review, the Company increased its
production of bearing steel and will continue in this
direction in the year in progress. The Company
developed a specialised grade of steel to suit the
stringent requirements of the global customers for use
in fuel injection pumps, common rail diesel injection
pumps, etc.. The Company also successfully

The reliability of the division in the manufacture of
cranes for critical applications such as hot metal
handling cranes for the metallurgical industry is
without parallel. The division also imparts after sales
service for the maintenance of the equipment
manufactured by it, thereby adding more value to its
customers. The Company is the only indigenous,
reliable and economical source of supply for such
products.
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received a repeat order for the same. The Electric Level
Luffing cranes are being executed with assistance from
Obe Machinery Co. of Japan. These specifications are
being manufactured indigenously for the first time. This
will enable the division to bid for abnormal size cranes
and machinery which is a niche market.

The division is able to capture a large share of the
market due to its ability to manufacture these highly
technical products which require specialised know
how and a great deal of customisation to meet specific
customer end use.
The Industrial Machinery division continues to grow at
an accelerated pace. The division has been under
constant pressure to increase its capacity to enable it
to unleash its true potential. During the year under
review, the Company commenced operations from the
additional facility that it commissioned next to the
Dighe, Thane facility. The Company is further
enhancing manufacturing capacity through the
acquisition of land at Sinnar, Nashik from MIDC which
will be operational in the financial year 2009 -2010.
Gradually over the next three years, this division is
expected to grow its capacity to Rs. 7 billion.

The division also bagged an order for the expansion
programme of SAILs IISCO Steel Plant at Burnpur as
part of the consortium led by SMS Meer GmbH of
Germany. The Companys billing for the order will be
at Rs.1.5 billion which will be executed along with its
group Company, Mukand Engineers Ltd. The scope of
work, scheduled to be completed within two years,
covers engineering and supply of auxiliary systems
for the mill including electrical, Electric Overhead
Traveling cranes with rotating trolleys and also site
management of the entire mill including erection and
commissioning work.

In the year that has gone by, the division not only grew
at an accelerated pace but successfully commissioned
and erected equipment that it hitherto had not ventured
into. Some of these firsts were:
1)

Road Construction Division:
The division is executing two projects for the
construction of the main carriage way and service road
as part of National Highway Project in the State of Uttar
Pradesh at Varanasi and Kanpur. As of March 31,
2008, 92% of the entire project has been completed.

500 tonne Electric Overhead Traveling (EOT) crane
for Larsen & Toubro

2) 30 tonne Electrical Level Luffing (ELL) crane for
Defense department

Finance:
The Company arranged from banks additional funded
and non-funded working capital facilities of Rs. 3.32
billion to fund the high increase in input costs and the
changing product mix. During the year, the Company
paid off Rs. 0.80 billion of its long term loans. In view
of the deployment of additional funds, interest charge
for the year under report was higher at Rs. 1.13 billion
as compared to Rs. 1.00 billion in the previous year.

3) 100 tonne Hammer Head crane for the Defense
department
4) Copper Plant equipment for copper mines in
Zambia
Work is in progress on the following prestigious orders:
1)

250 tonne Electric Overhead Traveling (EOT) crane
with a lifting beam of 500 tonne for the power
sector

The financial restructuring package approved by the
Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) cell has been
implemented fully; except for the conversion of debt
to the extent of Rs.118 million into equity by the existing
lenders, where the CDR cell has waived the condition
of conversion on the Company repaying debt
alongwith interest @ 18% per annum compounded on
quarterly basis from April 1, 2002. The Company, over
the years, has been accounting and paying interest @
10.50% per annum on a quarterly basis. The difference

2) 350 tonne Ladle crane for a steel plant
3) Four girder double trolley 500 tonne EOT crane
that will be made for the first time in India
4) 40 tonne and 60 tonne Electric Level Luffing cranes
with 55 metre radius
The 500 tonne Electric Overhead Traveling crane is
the first of such a large capacity and the Company has
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which has been accounted for and is payable amounts
to Rs. 92.11 million. All other conditions laid-down by
the CDR are being fulfilled and the interest and
installment payments are being made regularly.

Karnataka for use by the employees.
Industrial relations remained cordial during the year
under review and there has been active co-operation
from employees in the Companys efforts to improve
efficiency in all areas. The Company now has 1,903
permanent employees on its roll as on March 31, 2008
compared to 1,848 permanent employees as on March
31, 2007. The increase in the strength was primarily to
augment technical skills necessitated by the expansion
and modernisation of the Companys facilities.

Internal Control System:
The Company has in place proper and adequate
systems for internal controls, that provide assurances
on the efficiency of operations, security of assets,
statutory compliances, appropriate authorisation,
reporting and recording of transactions. The
Management Audit Department of the Company
prepares regular reports on the review of systems,
procedures, and shortcomings. The scope of the audit
activity is broadly guided by the annual audit plan
approved by the audit committee. A committee
comprising of members from the senior management
regularly reviews significant audit observations and
the follow-up actions. The Chief of Management
Audit monitors the implementation of these
recommendations.

The Company believes in the infinite resolve of its
people to give their best in what ever they do. It is this
sense of commitment and motivation that is being
enhanced especially amongst the young new recruits
through various motivational programmes. The
Company also continues its assimilation of methods
to enhance productivity and technical knowledge by
institutionalising it amongst its people.

People strength:
Attracting and retaining the best talent in human
resources is a challenge in a growing economy. The
Company has introduced a gain sharing mechanism
based on the performance of the employees to
motivate the employees further. The Company lays
great emphasis on work ethics and teamwork while
continuously encouraging its employees to reach for
greater heights.
At the Annual National Quality Circles competition held
in December 2007 at Kolkata, two of the quality circles
from the Industrial Machinery Division won awards
from amongst 700 participating Quality Circle groups
from across the country. Employees at all levels are
involved in Total Quality Management, Total Productive
Maintenance, Quality Circles and the Six Sigma
Practices.
The Company conducted a painting competition and
the two winning paintings from each age group were
selected for the designs of the Companys New Year
greeting card. A modern gymnasium has been set-up
at the Companys sports club at the Dighe, Thane
facility and a state of the art swimming pool at Ginigera,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
stainless steel, castings, cranes, forgings, infrastructure
development, material handling equipment, travel, general and life
insurance and investment & financial services. He is the Chairman
of the groups flagship, Bajaj Auto Limited. Bajaj Auto is Indias
premier 2 and 3-wheeler company.
Mr. Bajaj holds an Honours Degree in Economics from Delhi
University, a degree in Law from Bombay University and an MBA
from Harvard Business School.
Mr. Bajaj is the Chairman of the Board of many companies. He was
elected to the Upper House of Parliament (Rajya Sabha) in June
2006.
Mr. Bajaj has received numerous prestigious awards and
recognitions from reputed authorities and bodies, notable ones
being the award of Padma Bhushan in 2001, Alumni Achievement
Award by the Harvard Business School and Life Time Achievement
Awards from Economic Times and Ernst & Young.
Mr. Bajaj was the President of Confederation of Indian Industry (CII
- 1979-80/1999-2000). Mr. Bajaj was also President of Society of
Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM) and Mahratta Chamber of
Commerce, Industry and Agriculture (MCCIA) and Chairman of the
Development Council for Automobiles and Allied Industries.
He is a member of the Executive Board of Indian School of Business.
Mr. Bajaj was appointed Chairman (1986-89) of the Government
owned domestic carrier, Indian Airlines. Mr. Bajaj is a director on the
Board of Commonwealth Business Council.
The President of India nominated Mr. Bajaj as the Chairman of the
Board of Governors of the Indian Institute of Technology, Mumbai
during 2003-06.
Mr. Bajaj is a Member & former Chairman of the International
Business Council of the World Economic Forum, Geneva and a
Member of Harvard Business Schools (India) Research Centre &
India Advisory Board and the International Advisory Committee of
NYSE Euronext.
Chairman

Corporate Philosophy: Mukand continues to uphold its
commitment to adhere to high standards of Corporate Governance.
The Company strives to ensure transparency in all its operations,
make disclosures and comply with various laws and regulations.
Emphasis therefore, is on adding value to its shareholders, investors,
employees, suppliers, customers and the community.
1.
The Board of Directors:
1.1 Composition and size of the Board:
The Board at present consists of 14 directors including the executive
Chairman. Out of these 14 directors, 10 are non-executive directors,
which include seven independent directors. The Company has
had no pecuniary relations or transactions with the Non-Executive
Directors during the year under review.
1.2 Board Meetings:
During the year under review, six Board Meetings were held on
May 22, 2007, July 14, 2007 (two meetings), September 27, 2007,
October 29, 2007 and January 31, 2008. The Board was presented
with relevant and necessary information at these meetings. The
attendance of each director at the Board Meetings during the year
and at the last Annual General Meeting along with details of number
of other public limited companies and committees where he is a
director / member is tabulated below:
Name

Category

Attendance
Particulars
Board
Meetings

Shri Niraj Bajaj#
Shri Rajesh V. Shah##
Shri Rahul Bajaj
Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta
Dr. N.P. Jain,IFS(Retd.)
Shri Narendra J. Shah
Shri Shishir Bajaj
Shri N.C. Sharma
Shri T. Chattopadhyay
Shri. K. M. Jayarao
Shri Prakash V. Mehta*
Shri Pradip Shah*
Shri Suketu V. Shah~
Shri Vinod S. Shah

P.CMD
P.CCMD
P. NED
I.NED
I.NED
P.NED
P.NED
I.NED
I.NED
I.NMN
I.NED
I.NED
P.Jt.MD
WTD

6
6
3
5
4
6
5
5
5
2
2
3
6
6

No. of outside
directorships in
public ltd. cos.

Last Direc- As Chairman/
AGM
tor
Member of
ships Committees
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No


Yes
Yes

12
5
6
6
1

4
1

4
11
13
9
7

2
1

6


1


4
9
9
4


Bajaj Auto Ltd
Bajaj Allianz Gen. Insurance Co. Ltd.
Bajaj Holdings & Investment Ltd.

Bajaj Auto Finance Ltd.
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd
Bajaj Finserv Limited

Dhirajlal S. Mehta - Mr. Mehta (born on April 27, 1936) is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a
Fellow Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He has
been on the Board of Directors of Mukand Ltd. since 1976. He has
extensive experience in corporate laws, taxation, finance and
investments. He has served on committees constituted by SEBI, the
Department of Company Affairs and business/industry associations.
He has varied interests including social and voluntary work. Presently,
he is the President of, among others, Kasturba Gandhi National
Memorial Trust, Kasturba Health Society, and Shivananda Mission.
He is also the Joint Managing Trustee of Saurashtra Trust, which
runs the Janmabhoomi Group of Newspapers. Shri Mehta presently
holds directorships and committee memberships in the following
listed companies:

# appointed as Chairman w.e.f. July 14, 2007
## appointed as Co-Chairman w.e.f. July 14, 2007
* appointed as an additional Director w.e.f. September 27, 2007
~ appointed as Joint Managing Director w.e.f. July 14, 2007

P: Promoter; CMD: Chairman & Managing Director; CCMD : CoChairman & Managing Director, I: Independent, NED : Non-Executive
Director; Jt.MD: Joint Managing Director; NMN : Nominee Director:
WTD : Whole-time Director
None of the directors is a member of more than 10 committees or
acting as Chairman of more than five committees across all
companies in which he is a director.
1.3 Re-appointment of Directors:
Mr. Rahul Bajaj, Mr. Dhirajlal S. Mehta, Dr. N.P. Jain, IFS (Retd.) and
Mr. Suketu V. Shah retire by rotation and are eligible for reappointment. Mr. Prakash V. Mehta and Mr. Pradip Shah were
appointed as Additional Directors at the Board Meeting held on
September 27, 2007. It is proposed to appoint both of them as
Directors of the Company at the 70th Annual General Meeting. Their
attendance record in the board/general meetings during the year
under review is given in the Table hereinabove. Their brief particulars are:
Rahul Bajaj - Mr. Bajaj (born on June 10, 1938) is recognised as
one of the most successful business leaders of India. He heads the
Bajaj Group of Companies which manufacture and market a range
of products and services in India and abroad including 2 & 3wheelers, home appliances, lamps, wind energy, special alloy and

Bajaj Auto Ltd.
Bajaj Hindusthan Ltd.

Bajaj Auto Finance Ltd.
Maharashtra Scooters Ltd.,

N.P. Jain - Dr. Jain (born on December 12, 1930) is a retired diplomat
from the Indian Foreign Service. In addition to having been Secretary,
Ministry of External Affairs, Govt. of India, he has served as Indias
Ambassador to the European Union, Nepal, U.N., Mexico and
Belgium. In the recent years, Dr. Jain was a Member of the Board
of Directors of Exim Bank of India Ltd., Credit Lyonnaise and number
of other public limited companies in the steel, chemicals, textiles,
electronics, agri-business, power sectors etc.
He has been on the Board of Directors of Mukand Ltd. since 1990.
Suketu V. Shah - Mr. Shah (born on December 4, 1954) is a
commerce graduate and holds a Masters Degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from Harvard Business School. He joined the
services of the Company in the year 1984 and at present he is Joint
Managing Director of the Company. He joined the Board of the
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Company in the year 1989. He was the Chairman of the Western
Regional Council of the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) and
Chairman of Young Presidents Organisation (YPO)  Mumbai Chapter.
He is at present the Chairman of the Alloy Steel Producers
Association of India. He is also a director and committee member
of UTV Software Communications Ltd., a listed Company.
Prakash V. Mehta - Mr. Mehta (born on February 12, 1942)
graduated in law from the University of Bombay in 1963 and
qualified as a Solicitor in 1966. He was appointed as a Notary in
1996. He is a Member of the Maharashtra & Goa Bar Association
and also a member of the Managing Committee of the Bombay
Incorporated Law Society. His areas of specialisation include
Joint Ventures & Foreign Collaborations, Property Law and
Corporate Law. At present, he is one of the senior partners at
M/s. Malvi Ranchoddas & Co., Advocates & Solicitors, Mumbai.
The details of his directorships and committee memberships in
listed companies are as follows :Advani Hotels & Resorts Ltd.
Bharat Bijlee Ltd.
Ciba India Ltd.
Hikal Ltd.
JBF Industries Ltd.
Mukand Engineers Ltd.
PCS Technology Ltd.
W H Brady & Co. Ltd.

-

system, major accounting policies and practices, current assets
management, performance reviews, annual budget and annual
internal audit plan. Based on the Committees discussions and
review of the observations of the reports submitted by the
Companys internal audit department on systems and controls,
cost control measures and statutory compliance in various functional
areas, the Audit Committee advises the management on areas
where greater internal control and internal audit focus was needed
and on new areas to be taken up for audit.
3.
Remuneration of Directors:
The Company has a Remuneration Committee which consists of
Dr. N.P. Jain, Chairman, Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta, Shri N.C. Sharma
and Shri Prakash V. Mehta all of whom are independent Directors.
Shri N.C. Sharma and Shri Prakash V. Mehta were appointed as
members of the Committee on January 31, 2008.
The Remuneration Committee at the meeting held on May 20,
2008, recommended to the Board, remuneration of Shri Niraj Bajaj,
Chairman & Managing Director, Shri Rajesh V. Shah, Co-Chairman
& Managing Director and Shri Suketu V. Shah, Joint Managing
Director, whose term expires on July 4, 2008 on completion of three
years. The Board of Directors, subject to the approval of
Shareholders, has appointed Shri Niraj Bajaj as Chairman & Managing
Director, Shri Rajesh V. Shah as Co-Chairman & Managing Director
and Shri Suketu V. Shah as Joint Managing Director for a period of
three years w.e.f. July 5, 2008. The remuneration of these proposed
appointments will be made as per the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the remuneration and other
terms and conditions of the appointments are given in the Notice
read with explanatory statement for the 70th Annual General Meeting
sent to the members of the Company alongwith the Annual Report.
The details of remuneration for the Chairman & Managing Director,
Co-Chairman & Managing Director, Joint Managing Director and
Advisor (Special Projects) & Whole-time Director during the year
under review are given below :
(Rs. in lacs)

Committee Member
- do - do - do - do - do -

Pradip Shah - Mr. Shah (born on January 7, 1953) holds an MBA
from Harvard Business School and is a Commerce graduate of the
University of Bombay. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and
Cost Accountant. He ranked first in India in the Chartered
Accountancy examinations.
He is engaged in corporate finance and private equity advisory
business and is presently the Chairman of IndAsia Fund Advisors
Private Limited. Prior to starting IndAsia, he was associated with
the establishment of the Indocean Fund, was founder Managing
Director of The Credit Rating Information Services of India Limited
(CRISIL) and assisted in founding Housing Development Finance
Corporation (HDFC) in 1977. Shri Shah has also served as a consultant
to USAID, World Bank and Asian Development Bank. The details of
his directorships and committee memberships in listed companies
are as follows :BASF India Ltd.
Grindwell Norton Ltd.
Kansai Nerolac India Ltd.
Panasonic Battery India Co. Ltd.
Patni Computer System Ltd.
Pfizer Ltd.
Shah Foods Ltd.
Sonata Software Ltd.
Vakrangee Softwares Ltd.

-

Committee Member

-

Committee Member
- do - do - do -

Remuneration
Package

Niraj Bajaj Rajesh V. Shah Suketu V. Shah

Salary & allowances 21.00
Contribution to
P.F. and Other funds 5.67
Perquisites
3.00

Vinod S. Shah

21.00

30.80 *

12.00 *

2.57
2.65

2.20
1.08
5.70
3.41
* Includes leave encashment

The Chairman & Managing Director, Co-Chairman & Managing
Director and Joint Managing Director and Advisor (Special Projects)
& Whole-time Director have service agreements with the Company
for a period up to 3 years which can be terminated through a
notice given in writing, six months in advance.
The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non-executive
Directors of the Company except for the payment of sitting fees for
attending Board / Committee meetings. The Company has not
issued stock options to any of its Directors.
Details of shares in the Company held by Non-executive Directors
as on March 31, 2008 are as under:-

Committee Member

2.
Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee consists of Dr. N.P. Jain, Chairman, Shri N.C.
Sharma, Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta and Shri Prakash V. Mehta all of
whom are Independent Directors. Terms of Reference of the Audit
Committee specified by the Board are as contained in Section
292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. Shri Prakash V. Mehta was
appointed as a member of the Committee on January 31, 2008.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met four times.
Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta attended four meetings while Dr. N.P. Jain
and Shri N.C. Sharma attended three meetings each of the Audit
Committee. These Meetings were also attended by the Statutory
Auditors, Chief  Management Audit, Cost Auditors and Shri Niraj
Bajaj - Chairman & Managing Director, Shri Rajesh V. Shah - CoChairman & Managing Director, Shri Suketu V. Shah - Joint Managing
Director, Shri Vinod S. Shah - Advisor (Special Projects) & Whole-time
Director and Shri S.B. Jhaveri - Financial Advisor & Chief of Accounts.
Shri K.J. Mallya - Company Secretary acts as Ex-officio Secretary to
the Audit Committee.
Apart from considering un-audited and/or audited financial results
for the relevant quarter, half year and the year prior to adoption/
approval by the Board, the Committee focused its attention on key
areas impacting the overall performance of the Company, operations
of Plants, management audit, cost audit, review of internal control

Sr. Name of the Director
No.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Shri Rahul Bajaj
Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta
Dr. N. P. Jain, IFS (Retd.)
Shri Narendra J. Shah
Shri Shishir Bajaj
Shri N.C. Sharma
Shri T. Chattopadhyay
Shri K.M. Jayarao
Shri Prakash V. Mehta
Shri Pradip P. Shah

Equity
Shares
166,792
277
40
99,605
42,037
4,000
96

0.01% Cumulative
Redeemable
Preference Shares
13,132
69
10
8,245
10,508
-

4.
Shareholders / Investors Grievances:
The Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee consists of Shri
N. C. Sharma, Shri Dhirajlal S. Mehta and Dr. N.P. Jain all of whom
are independent Directors. Dr. N.P. Jain was appointed as a member
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of the Committee on January 31, 2008. The seventh meeting of
the Committee was held on May 20, 2008. As on March 31, 2008,
24 requests for transfer of shares and 56 requests for
dematerialisation of shares were pending for approval and these
were processed before April 7, 2008. Shri K.J. Mallya, Company
Secretary is the Compliance Officer.
There were no major complaints from the investors. Routine
complaints relating to non-receipt of the letter of offer/annual report,
details of shares offered, payment of interest, transfer of shares,
dematerialisation of shares and request for change of address,
etc. were attended generally within 3/4 days. The Company had
received three complaints from shareholders through the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and two complaints through the
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE), which were promptly attended.
5.
General Body Meetings:
Last three Annual General Meetings were held at Kamalnayan
Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhawan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226 Nariman Point,
Mumbai 400 021 on the following dates and time:
AGM

Date

Time

67th
68th
69th

July 30, 2005
July 19, 2006
July 14, 2007

11.00 a.m.
3.30 p.m.
11.30 a.m.

facilities and processes, quality policy, financial results, shareholding
pattern, code of conduct, share prices etc. is available at the
corporate website: www.mukand.com.
The Company is sending a quarterly newsletter, since January,
2006, titled Quarterly Update to the shareholders up-dating them
on the performance of the Company within a fortnight of above
results being published in newspapers.
9.
Shareholders Information:
9.1 Annual General Meeting:
Date
Tuesday, July 29, 2008
Time
4.00 p.m.
Venue
Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhawan,
Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point,
Mumbai 400 021.
9.2 Financial calendar:
Financial Year : April 1 to March 31
Consideration of Financial Results:
i.
First quarter
[unaudited]
last week of July.
ii.
Second quarter
[unaudited]
last week of October.
iii.
Third quarter
[unaudited]
last week of January.
iv.
Annual
[audited]
last week of May.
9.3 Date of Book Closure and Dividend Payment:
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company
will remain closed from Tuesday, July 15, 2008 to Tuesday, July 29,
2008 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of dividend.
The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will be paid at par on or
after August 4, 2008 to those members whose names appear on
the Companys Register of members as holders of equity and
preference shares in physical form on July 14, 2008. In respect of
shares held in dematerialised form, the dividend will be paid on the
basis of beneficial ownership details to be furnished by the National
Securities Depository Limited(NSDL) and the Central Depository
Services (India) Limited(CDSL) for this purpose.
9.4 Stock Exchange Listing:
Equity Shares and 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(CRPS) of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
Ltd.(BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.(NSE) and the
applicable listing fees have been paid to the Exchanges.
9.5 Stock Code:
Equity
CRPS
1.
BSE
500460
700087
2.
NSE
Mukandltd
Mukandcrps
3.
ISIN
INE 304A01026
INE 304A04012
9.6 Stock Price Data:
Monthly highs and lows of the Companys Equity Share prices on
the BSE and NSE in the year 2007-08 is given hereunder:

The Company had passed one Special Resolution in the Annual
General Meeting held on July 30, 2005 for the appointment and
payment of remuneration to Shri Vinod S. Shah as Whole-time
Director designated as Advisor (Special Projects).The resolution
was put to vote by show of hands and was passed unanimously.
6.
Disclosures:
6.1. Related Party Transactions:
There were no materially significant related party transactions made
by the Company with its promoters, directors or their relatives during
the year, which may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. The details of transactions with related parties
are disclosed in the Accounts.
6.2. Compliance with Regulations:
There were no non-compliance matters related to capital markets
by the Company during the last three years, nor did the Company
attract any penalties or strictures passed by the stock exchanges,
SEBI or any other statutory authority.
6.3. Risk Management:
The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent
in the business environment and the operations of the Company
and initiation of appropriate measures for prevention and/or
mitigation of the same are dealt with by the concerned operational
heads under the overall supervision of the Managing Directors of
the Company. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the
adequacy and efficacy of the overall risk management system.
7.
Code of Conduct:
7.1 The Company adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and
Senior Management cadres in the meeting of Board of Directors
held on October 28, 2005. The Directors and senior management
personnel have affirmed their compliance of the Code of Conduct.
7.2 The Company has instituted a Code of Conduct for prevention
of Insider Trading in the securities of the Company for its Directors
and key managerial staff as required by SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 as amended from time to time.
8.
Means of Communication:
The quarterly un-audited and yearly audited financial results are
published in English and regional language newspapers and are
also available on the Electronic Data Information Filing and Retrieval
(EDIFAR) website maintained online by SEBI as required under Clause
51 of the Listing Agreement and on the corporate website of the
Company www.mukand.com. The Management Discussion and
Analysis is a part of the Annual Report. All financial and other vital
information is promptly communicated to the Stock Exchanges
where the Companys shares are listed.
Information, in words and visuals, about the Company and its
businesses, including products manufactured, projects executed,

Rate Rs.

Month

High

BSE

Low

High

NSE

Low

Year 2007
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

94.30
100.70
93.45
92.00
85.50
93.00
93.90
97.20
140.55

January
February
March

154.80
105.90
98.95

78.55
86.70
84.00
79.50
67.80
75.95
78.60
75.50
84.00
Year 2008
71.85
85.05
80.00

99.90
115.00
95.00
94.00
84.90
93.45
93.95
96.70
135.00

76.50
86.65
83.20
66.00
66.90
74.00
70.00
75.50
83.60

161.50
106.00
99.50

72.00
84.00
78.00

During the year, CRPS were traded on BSE and the price ranged between Rs. 2.10

and Rs.38.62 per share.
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9.7

The shareholding pattern of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2008
is given in the table as under:

Comparative Stock Price Performance :

The Equity share prices of the Company on BSE in comparison with
the BSE sensex is given in the following graph:
140.00

Sl. Category of Shareholders
No.

1 Promoter & Promoter Group
2 Mutual Funds and Unit Trust
of India
3 Financial Institutions & Banks
4 Insurance Companies
5 Other Bodies Corporate
6 Foreign Institutional Investors
7 Non Resident Indians / OCBs
8 Indian Public

25000.00

20000.00
100.00

15000.00
80.00

60.00
10000.00

40.00

BSE Sensex

ML Share Closing Price

120.00

Total

5000.00

0.00
Apr-07

May-07

Jun-07

Jul-07

Aug-07

Sep-07

Oct-07

Nov-07

Dec-07

Jan-08

Feb-08

Mar-08

Closing Price
Sensex

9.8

Registrar and Transfer Agents:

The Company has no external Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.
All such work is done in-house by the Share Department at the
Registered Office.
9.9 Share Transfer System:
The Share transfers are approved by a Committee of Directors,
which is normally done once in 10 days. Share transfers are registered
within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents
are complete in all respect. The Company has followed the
guidelines issued by SEBI for dematerialisation of Shares.
During the year, 76,378 Equity Shares and 45,901 0.01%
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) were transferred
in physical (non-dematerialised) form.
9.10 Distribution of Shareholding:
The Company had 47,780 Equity Shareholders and 44,204 0.01%
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shareholders (CRPS holders)
as on March 31, 2008. Distribution of shareholding is given in the
table hereunder:
Distribution of
Shareholding

Upto
51
101
501
1,001
5,001
10,001
Total :

&

50
100
500
1,000
5,000
10,000
above

Distribution of
Shareholding

Upto
51
101
501
1,001
5,001
10,001
Total :

&

50
100
500
1,000
5,000
10,000
above

No. of
%
Equity of Equity
Shares
Shares

No. of
Equity
Share
holders

% of
Equity
Share
holders

561,477
0.77
792,262
1.08
2,687,765
3.68
1,590,978
2.18
2,992,641
4.09
1,183,298
1.62
63,305,708 86.58
73,114,129 100.00

24,060
9,348
10,550
2,008
1,393
167
254
47,780

50.36
19.56
22.08
4.20
2.92
0.35
0.53
100.00

%
of CRPS

No. of
CRPS
holders

%
of CRPS
holders

423,354
7.52
160,777
2.86
394,386
7.01
158,829
2.82
444,052
7.89
211,790
3.76
3,833,132 68.14
5,626,320 100.00

39,798
2,076
1,839
215
203
28
45
44,204

90.03
4.70
4.16
0.49
0.46
0.06
0.10
100.00

No. of
CRPS

% of Total
Shareholding

36,815,168

50.35

4,242,824
255,680
7,629,184
4,574,296
5,793,059
163,797
13,640,121

5.80
0.35
10.44
6.26
7.92
0.22
18.66

73,114,129

100.00

9.11 Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity:
The Companys Shares are dealt with both the depositories viz.
NSDL and CDSL. The Company for the benefit of the Shareholders
has made one time payment to NSDL towards custodial charges.
During the year, 190,734 Equity Shares and 21,386 CRPS were
dematerialised in respect of 1,274 and 609 requests respectively.
The dematerialisation level as on March 31, 2008 stood at 94.98 %
of total paid-up Equity Share capital and 84.88 % of the total paidup 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital. As on
March 31, 2008, 28,087 Shareholders held 69,441,606 Equity Shares
and 18,372 Shareholders held 4,775,544 CRPS in demat form.
9.12 Plant Locations:
Dighe, Thane, Maharashtra 400 605
Ginigera, Karnataka 583 228
9.13 Address for Correspondence:
Bajaj Bhawan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
226, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021.
Tel: 022-2282 2222 Fax: 022-2202 1174
E-mail : investors_cell@mukand.com
10. Auditors certificate on Corporate Governance:
The Company has obtained a certificate from the Auditors of the
Company regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges. This is annexed to the Directors Report. The certificate
will be sent to the Stock Exchanges along with the annual return to
be filed by the Company.

20.00

0.00

No. of Shares

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Members
Mukand Limited
Bajaj Bhavan, 226, Nariman Point,
Mumbai  400 021
We have reviewed the records concerning the Companys compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement entered into, by the Company, with the Stock Exchanges of India, for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2008.
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.
We have conducted our review on the basis of the relevant records and documents
maintained by the Company and furnished to us for the review, and the information
and explanations given to us by the Company.
Based on such a review, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the said Listing
Agreements.
We further state that, such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company, nor as to the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For and on behalf of
DALAL & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
ASHISH DALAL
Mumbai : 20th May, 2008
Partner
Membership No. 33596
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Appendix - I to the Directors Report
Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of
Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo as required under Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the report of Board Of Directors) Rules, 1988.

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per
unit of production:
Form - A
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect
to conservation of energy.

(A) Conservation of Energy:
(a) Energy Conservation Measures taken:

A.

Steel Plant:
(a) To reduce electrical energy consumption:

Automation of electro-magnetic stirrer of billet caster.

Installation of additional plate heat exchangers in
bloom mould cooling system to reduce pumping
requirement by 33%.

Replacement of capacitors in the third bank

Replacement of inefficient pumps in pump house
with efficient pumps.

Induction motor and VVVF drive installed in BRF of
new WRM BRF to reduce power consumption.

Replacement of metal blades of Cooling tower fans
with fibre reinforced plastic blades.

Installation of variable frequency drives for bell
furnaces.

Air-conditioners configured at 25 degrees centigrade
in office areas.
(b)








Power and Fuel Consumption:
2007-08

2006-07

83,230
403,780
4.85

100,601
483,590
4.81

Own Generation:
Through Fuel Oil
Unit : 000 kwh
Unit / litre of Fuel Oil
Rate / Unit  Rs. / kwh

108,583
4.43
4.10

107,172
4.45
3.55

Furnace Oil*:
Quantity (Kl.)
Total amount  Rs. 000
Average Rate  Rs./Kl.

47,284
873,236
18,468

47,776
796,714
16,676

1.

Electricity Purchased:
Unit : 000 kwh
Total amount  Rs. 000
Rate / Unit  Rs./kwh

2.

3.

* Includes diesel oil.
B.

To reduce Fuel Oil consumption:
Optimising consumption of gases in continuous
casting machine by controlling cutting torch speed
and idle movements.
Proper maintenance of air to fuel ratio in re-heating
furnace.
Ceramic coating on inner side of solution annealing
and Blooming Mill furnace to reduce the heat loss.
Installation of recuperator in billet re-heating furnace
of wire rod mill.
To start boiler only after keeping the heat shield on
Ladle and to switch off on release of vacuum to
save boiler operation time per heat.
Use of heat resisting cloth curtain in billet reheating
furnace to reduce radiation heat loss.
Use of alpha 3 solvent for cleaning of machines in
place of high speed diesel oil.

Consumption per unit:
Products
Rolled Products
Rolled Products
*

Electricity kwh / tonne
2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
488

507

539

Furnace Oil * ltr. / tonne
54
59
61

Includes diesel oil.

(B) Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to
Technology Absorption, Research and Development.
(a) Research and Development:
1.

Specific areas in which Research and
Development was carried out by the Company:


(b) Additional Investments and proposals being
implemented for reduction in consumption of energy:
Steel Plant:
(a)
To reduce electrical energy consumption:

Replacement of Helical Gear Motor with Planetary
Gear Box in the Cooling Bed of Bar Mill.
(b) To reduce Fuel Oil consumption:

Installation of Vertical Burner system to reduce heat
loss during transfer of Ladles.

Installation of air fuel control system in Billet Reheating
Furnace of Bar Mill.

Installation of micro valve in burners of Ladle Preheating Station to optimize oil flow.

Installation of new re-generative burners for Billet
Reheating Furnace.

Ceramic coating on inner side of Bar Mill and Billet
Reheating Furnaces of new WRM.










(c) Impact of the above measures at (a) and (b) for
reduction in energy consumption and consequent impact
on the cost of production of goods:

2.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:


Due to measures taken as described above, the electricity
and furnace oil consumption has reduced per tonne of Bars
and Rods.
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Studies on Hardening and Tempering
characteristics of non-nickel bearing stainless
steel completed and process operationalised.
Studies to improve the surface quality of stainless
steel wire rods for welding applications
completed and steel with high silicon and high
molybdenum developed for welding
applications.
Duplex stainless steel produced and supplied
to user industries like seamless tubes and
forgings.
Fine tuning of heat treatment process
parameters for precipitation hardening grade
of stainless steel to achieve customer specific
requirements and bulk production.
Development activities completed in connection
with micro-alloyed steels for forging applications
in automobiles.
Development of Ball Bearing Wires for Ball
applications.
Certification of R&D laboratories by National
Accreditation for Laboratories.
Capability to cater to wider high value segment
of domestic and international markets
enhanced.




3.

Development of new grades of steel for:

Black Bars for Common Rail Diesel Injection
component being a critical component for
automobiles.

Black Bars / Bright Bars for connecting Rod used
as auto component.

Wire Rods for Cold-forged Collar Bolt in
automobiles.

Wire Rods for Fasteners in auto component
industry.

Bars for Gear and Pinion for export market of
auto components.

Bars for Bearings.

Black Bars for Crank Shaft.

Micro-alloyed steel for forging applications.

Steel for shaft of two wheelers.

Ball Bearing steel for high temperature
applications.

Steel for Drive Axle in automobiles.

Hardened and Tempered steel for export
market.

Peeled Bars in large diameters for extrusion
applications.

Duplex grade of stainless steel for use in oil &
gas and marine applications, valve bodies and
boilers.

Improvement in productivity / quality,
standardisation of process parameters and
reduction in rejection / defect levels.
Development of related Grades through
technical skills acquired while developing a new
grade of steel.
Capacity development to cater to growing
needs of steel for automotive applications.

Future Plan of Action:




4.

Development of micro alloyed steels for
automobile forging applications of automobile
components.
Co-ordination / Co-operation with leading
academic / research institutes for advanced
study of material characteristics.
Development of more advanced test
procedures and facilities for precision testing of
steel as per American Society for Testing
Materials.

Expenditure on R & D:

(a)
(b)

Capital
Recurring
Total
Total R&D expenditure
as a % of total turnover

2007-08
Rs.000
8,414
5,684
14,098

2006-07
Rs.000
2,891
3,796
6,687

0.07

0.04

(2) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:

Reduction in costs, break-downs and rejections.
Improvement in yield, productivity and quality
up-gradation for customer satisfaction.

Improvement in the market share and increase
in volume of value added products.

(b) Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.
(1) Efforts made towards technology absorption,
adaptation and innovation:






(3) Imported Technology:
Company has not imported any technology during the
year under review.

Implementation of Total Productive Maintenance
system reduced product defects / losses /
breakdowns / accidents, etc.
Commencement of in-house Bar Hardening and
Tempering processes.
Use of stainless steel scrap instead of steel
scrap and nickel to reduce steel making costs.
Large capacity EOT / Ladle Cranes and Electrical
Level Luffing Travelling Tower Cranes.
Four Girder Double Trolley EOT Crane.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
2007-08
Rs. 000
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Foreign Exchange Earnings
CIF Value of imports
Expenditure in Foreign Currency

1,772,168
5,696,196
88,908

APPENDIX II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Statement of Particulars pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975
and forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended 31st March, 2008.
Sr. Name
No.

Age
(Yrs.)

Designation &
Nature of Duties

Qualification

Experience
(Yrs.)

Remuneration
Received
Gross
Net
Rs.
Rs.

Date of
Commencement of
employment

Last Employment held,
Designation, Name of the
employer
(Years for which post held)

A. Names of Employees employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs.2,400,000/- per annum.
1

Bajaj Niraj

53

Chairman & Managing
Director

2

DCosta I. M.

65

Technical Director,
(Steel Plant, Thane)

3

Shah Rajesh V.

56

4

Shah Suketu V.

53

NOTES:

1.
2.
3.
4.

B.Com., M.B.A.
(Harvard Business
School)
D.E.E., D.M.E.,
G. M. I. I. E.

27

2,967,000

1,682,859 31/3/1983 Executive Trainee,
Bajaj Auto Ltd. (2)

48

2,664,464

1,640,630 2/2/1981

Co-Chairman &
Managing
Director

M.A. (Cambridge),
M.B.A. (California),
P.M.D., (Harvard
Business School)

31

2,622,246

1,645,101 11/6/1977 Director, Virani
Fasteners & Bolts
Pvt .Ltd. (1)

Joint Managing
Director

B.Com. (Hons.),
M.B.A. (Harvard
Business School)

26

3,870,497

2,428,749 29/12/1984 Executive Director,
Adonis Laboratories
(2 Yrs & 6 Mths)

Sr.Dy. Supdt, Bihar
Alloy Steels Ltd. (2)

Gross remuneration includes Salary, House Rent Allowance, Leave Encashment, Medical, Other Allowances, Bonus, Contribution to Provident and
Superannuation Funds and value of perquisites etc. but excludes contribution to Gratuity Fund.
Net remuneration represents gross remuneration as above less tax, contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds.
All appointments are contractual.
None of the above employees is related to any Director of the Company except that Shri Rajesh V. Shah and Shri Suketu V. Shah are related to each
other.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
BFL. We are unable to make an informed
judgement on the realisability of BFLs Exposures
and have therefore placed reliance on the
judgement of the Management on the adequacy
of the cover, the classification of the Exposures as
Good and expectation of full realisability of the
Exposures by the Company in BFL;

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MUKAND
LIMITED as at 31st March, 2008, the annexed Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Companys Management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
1.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from any material misstatement. An
audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order,
2003 and the Companies (Auditors Report) (Amendment)
Order, 2004 issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we annex hereto
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and
5 of the said Order.

3.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above,
we report that:
(i) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of the books of the
Company;
(iii) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company;
(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report,
comply with the accounting standards referred in subsection (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;
(v) Based on the representations made by the Directors
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the information and explanations given
to us, none of the Directors is, as at 31st March, 2008,
prima-facie disqualified from being appointed as a
director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956;
(vi) We invite attention to the following:
1. Note No. B 6(a) relating to investments amounting
to Rs.1,929,600 in, and debts amounting to
Rs.802,828,396 due from Bombay Forgings
Limited (BFL), where BIFR has, during the year,
discharged BFL from the purview of the provisions
of SICA. The Management continues to rely on the
valuation of the unencumbered assets of BFL,
valued as at 31st March, 2008 at Rs.533,319,000
and the earnings from BFLs ongoing business for
full realisability of the Companys Exposures in
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2.

Note No. B 6(b) relating to investments amounting
to Rs.431,410,000 (Net of provision for diminution)
in, and loans and recoverables amounting to
Rs.860,642,949 due from the subsidiary Vidyavihar Containers Limited (VCL), whose
networth has eroded. The Management is of the
opinion that the losses that would result on this
account, is not quantifiable at present, since, they
would depend upon realization of the unsecured
financial assets that VCL stands invested into at
the close of the year. We are unable to make an
informed judgement on the realisability of VCLs
Exposures and have therefore placed reliance
on the Managements opinion on the adequacy
of the cover, classification of the Exposures in VCL
as Good and the expectation of full realisability
of the Exposures by the Company in VCL;

3.

Note No. B 6(c) relating to loans and interest dues
aggregating Rs.95,662,406 due from companies
whose networths have eroded. The Management
is of the opinion that the losses that would result
on this account, is not quantifiable at present,
since, they would depend upon the amount which
will ultimately be released from the unsecured
financial assets of these companies and therefore,
no provision on this account is quantifiable at
present. We are unable to make an informed
judgement on the realisability of these Exposures
and have therefore placed reliance on the
judgement of the Management on the adequacy
of the cover, the classification of the Exposures as
Good and expectation of the realisability of the
Exposures in these companies;

4.

Note No. B 6(d) relating to investments amounting
to Rs.130,915,468 in, and advances and
recoverables Rs.411,096,770 (net of provision) due
from Stainless India Limited (SIL) and guarantees
aggregating Rs.8,303,000 given to a Bank on
behalf of SIL, whose networth has eroded and
has been referred to BIFR. Since the Management
relies on the valuation of unencumbered assets of
SIL, valued as at 31 st March, 2008 at
Rs.271,956,585, the earnings from the ongoing
business of SIL and also reckons the investment in
SIL to be of a strategic nature, it does not consider
it necessary to recognize the diminution in value of
investment and continues to regard the balance
advances and dues from SIL to be good and fully
realisable. We are unable to make an informed
judgement on the realisability of SILs Exposures
and have therefore placed reliance on the
judgement of the Management on the adequacy
of the cover, the classification of the unprovided

Exposures as Good and the expectation of full
realisability of the Exposures by the Company in
SIL;
5.

6.

Management at reasonable intervals, in a phased
verification programme, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable, looking to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business. According to the information
and explanations given to us, discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of assets have been adjusted
in the books of account;

Note No. B 6(e) relating to investments amounting
to Rs.262,495,000 in, and loans and recoverables
aggregating Rs.261,398,390 due from its
subsidiary Mukand Global Finance Limited (MGFL),
whose recovery is dependent upon realisation of
the financial assets that MGFL stands invested
into at the close of the year. We are unable to
make an informed judgement on the realisability
of MGFLs Exposures and have therefore placed
reliance on the Managements opinion on the
adequacy of the cover, classification of the
Exposures in MGFL as Good and full realisability
of the Exposures of the Company in MGFL;

(c)
ii.

Reference is invited to Note No. B 12(c) relating to
our inability to determine accrued losses and
corresponding realisabilities in respect of the Road
Construction Contracts;

(c)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
explanations given and Management representations
made to us, the said financial statements, subject to our
reservations expressed in para. 3(vi) above, and read
together with the notes thereon, present a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2008;
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit
for the year ended on that date and;
(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records
of the Company, we are of the opinion that, the
Company is maintaining proper records of its inventory.
Discrepancies which were noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records,
have been properly dealt with in the books of the
Company;

iii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not granted any loan, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956;

iv.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are generally adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of
the Company and the nature of its business with regard to
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for sale of
goods and services. During the course of our audit, we
have not observed any major weakness in internal controls;

v.

(a) On the basis of the audit procedures performed by us,
and according to the information, explanations and
representations made to us, we are of the opinion
that, the particulars of contracts or arrangements in
which directors were interested as contemplated under
Sections 297 and 299 of the Companies Act, 1956 and
which were required to be entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the said Act, have
been so entered;

For and on behalf of

Mumbai: 20th May, 2008

(a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically
verified during the year by the Management, except
for inventories lying with outside parties, which have
been confirmed by them;
(b) The procedures explained to us, which are followed
by the Management for physical verification of
inventories, are, in our opinion, reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business;

We further report that, the aggregate impact resulting out
of our observations in this para 3(vi) on the Profit, is not
quantifiable by us since, the issues involved are
judgemental in nature, and we, being unable to make an
informed judgement on these matters, have largely relied
upon the judgement of the Management on these matters.
4.

The Company has not disposed of any substantial
part of its fixed assets so as to affect its going concern;

DALAL & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
ASHISH DALAL
Partner
Membership No.: 33596

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 exceeding the value of rupees
five lacs in respect of any party during the year have
been made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to prevailing market prices at that time;

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 OF OUR
AUDITORS REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MUKAND LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2008
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and
in terms of the information and explanations given to us, we
state that:i. (a) The Company has generally maintained proper
records showing particulars, including quantitative
details of its fixed assets, except for certain movable
assets, where records are to be updated;

vi.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets, according to the
practice of the Company, are physically verified by the
24

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956
and its Rules and also the directives of Reserve Bank of
India with regard to acceptance of deposits from the public.
Since the Company has not defaulted in repayment of

deposits, compliance of Section 58AA or obtaining any
order from the Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any other tribunal does not arise;

xii. As explained to us, the Company has not granted any
loans or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge
of shares, debentures or any other securities;

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
(including internal audit carried out by firms of Chartered
Accountants appointed by the Management) which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature
of its business;

xiii. In respect of the securities dealt in or traded by the Company,
proper records have been maintained in respect of the
transactions and contracts, and timely entries have been
made therein. All the investments are held by the Company
in its own name;

viii. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under
Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act,1956 in respect of the
Companys products to which the said rules are applicable,
and are of the opinion that, prima-facie, the prescribed
records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate;

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us
and the representations made by the Management, the
Company has given a guarantee to a bank for a loan
taken by another company in earlier years. In our opinion,
the terms and conditions of the continuing guarantee, at
present, seem to be prima-facie prejudicial to the interest
of the Company;
xv. On the basis of the records examined by us and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not obtained any term loan during the year;

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company and the
information and explanations given to us, we have to
state that, the Company is generally regular in
depositing statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty and Cess. There have been delays in
depositing undisputed Income tax and Sales Tax.
However, no amounts were outstanding for more than
six months, as at 31st March, 2008, from the date they
became payable;

xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us,
and on an overall examination of the Financial Statements
of the Company and after placing reliance on the reasonable
assumptions made by the Company for classification of
long term and short term usages of funds and after
considering the Financial Restructuring Package approved
by the Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell wherein
outstanding sums including interest have been converted
into long term funds, we are of the opinion that, primafacie, short term funds have not been utilized during the
year for long term purposes;

(b) On the basis of our examination of the documents and
records of the Company, there were no disputed dues
in respect of Wealth tax, Service tax and Customs
duty. However, the following disputed dues have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities:
Nature
of Dues

Amount (Rs.) Forum where dispute
is pending

Sales tax

44,542,360 High Court

xvii. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares during the year;
xviii. On the basis of records and documents examined by us,
securities / charges have been created in respect of
debentures issued;
xix. The Company has not raised any money by way of public
issue during the year;

16,460,883 Sales tax Tribunal

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us,
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, no fraud on or
by the Company, has been noticed or reported by the
Company during the year;

66,849,413 Departmental Authorities
Entry tax

735,283 High Court
2,861,739 Departmental Authorities

Income tax

3,191,887 Commissioner Appeals
(@) Commissioner Appeals

Excise duty

2,000,000 High Court

Looking to the nature of activities being carried on at present by
the Company and also considering the nature of the matters
referred to in the various clauses of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2003 and the Companies (Auditors Report)
(Amendment) Order, 2004, clauses (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(f), (iii)(g)
and (xiii) of paragraph 4 of the aforesaid Order, are, in our
opinion, not applicable to the Company.

871,860 Tribunal
Electricity duty 142,743,646 High Court

For and on behalf of

(@) Interest liability unascertainable at present
x.

The Company, neither has accumulated losses at the end
of the financial year nor has incurred cash losses, both, in
the financial year under report and the immediately
preceding financial year;

Mumbai: 20th May, 2008

xi. According to the records examined by us and the
information and explanations given to us, and after
considering the Financial Restructuring Package approved
by the Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell, we have to state
that the Company has not defaulted in re-payment of dues
to Financial Institutions, Banks or Debenture holders;
25
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2008
31st March,
2008
Rs.000

Schedule
I

SOURCES OF FUNDS
(1) Shareholders Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus
(2)

1
2

787,520
6,953,812

(3) Loan Funds
(a) Secured Loans
(b) Unsecured Loans

3
4

10,987,499
1,958,954

Total
II

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
(1) Fixed Assets
(a) Assets
(i)
Gross Block
(ii)
Less: Depreciation
(b)
(2)

787,520
6,528,939
7,741,332
594,622

Deffered Tax Liability (net) [Refer Note B(19)]

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

7,316,459
306,487
9,739,327
805,239

12,946,453

10,544,566

21,282,407

18,167,512

5

(iii) Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress

Investments

12,119,065
5,490,303

11,502,057
4,982,315

6,628,762
2,421,158

6,519,742
568,878

6

(3) Current Assets, Loans and Advances
(a) Inventories
(b) Sundry Debtors
(c) Cash and Bank Balances
(d) Other Current Assets
(e) Loans and Advances

7
8
9
10
11

Less:
Current Liabilities and Provisions
(a) Liabilities
(b) Provisions

12
13

1,115,995

965,782
4,966,492
5,420,546
995,373
328,896
3,291,168

18,073,274

15,002,475

6,273,468
739,462

4,407,855
584,248

14

Total
Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies adopted by the Company and
Notes forming part of the Accounts

7,088,620

6,960,795
5,741,511
1,392,190
331,393
3,647,385

7,012,930

Net Current Assets
(4) Deferred Revenue Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

9,049,920

11,060,344

4,992,103
10,010,372

56,148

102,738

21,282,407

18,167,512

20

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director
Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
Schedule
INCOME
Sales, Services and Other Income
Gross Sales and Services
Less : Excise Duty recovered
Net Sales and Services
Other Income

15

EXPENDITURE
Raw Materials Consumed
Operating and Other Expenses
Variation in Opening and Closing Stocks
Purchase of Goods for Trade (including semi-finished)
Finance and Lease Charges
Depreciation

19

Less : Expenditure transferred to Capital Accounts/
Capital Work-in-Progress
Add / (Less) :
Exceptional Items (net) [Refer Note B(16)]

19,267,880
214,541
19,482,421

20,782,730
2,671,811
18,110,919
218,483
18,329,402

9,679,258
8,808,856
(1,453,001 )
276,429
1,130,827
579,426
19,021,795

7,776,352
8,691,144
(842,204 )
95,195
995,030
566,688
17,282,205

(348,109 )
18,673,686
808,735

(83,180 )
17,199,025
1,130,377

90,213

17,716

898,948

1,148,093

(10,024 )
(630 )
(92,735 )
(294,314 )
92,735

Profit after tax
Add / (Less):
Prior Period Adjustments (net) [Refer Note B(17)]
Excess / (Short) provision for tax
Balance brought forward from previous year
Balance available for Appropriations
Appropriations :
Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve
Proposed Preference Dividend
Proposed Equity Dividend
Tax on Preference Dividend / Equity Dividend
Transfer to General Reserve

(304,968 )
593,980

(9,000 )
(630 )
(127,700 )
(306,487 )
229,153
(214,664 )
933,429

(69,810 )
(1,749 )
522,421
1,163,072
1,685,493

(738 )

932,691
986,778
1,919,469

(455,110 )
1,230,383


(170,850 )
(6 )
(73,114 )
(12,427 )
(500,000 )
756,397
1,163,072

129,687
(199,250 )
(6 )
(73,114 )
(12,427 )
(300,000 )

Balance carried to the Balance Sheet
Weighted average number of Equity Shares
outstanding during the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share including
Exceptional Items (in Rs.)
Basic and diluted earnings per share excluding
Exceptional Items (net of tax) (in Rs.)
Nominal value of share (in Rs.)
Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies adopted by the Company and
Notes forming part of the Accounts

73,114,129

73,114,129

7.15

12.76

5.91
10.00

12.54
10.00

20

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director
Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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2006-07
Rs.000

22,005,049
2,737,169

16
17
18

Profit before tax
(Less) : Provision for taxation :
Fringe Benefit Tax (Including share of Fringe Benefit Tax
under Stategic Alliance - Rs 1,524,120/-)
Wealth Tax
Current Tax (MAT under Section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
Deferred Tax
MAT Credit Entitlement

2007-08
Rs.000

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities

2007-08

2007-08

Profit/(Loss) before tax and exceptional items

2007-08

2006-07

2006-07

808,735

Rs.000
2006-07
1,130,377

Add back :
(1)
(2)
(3)

Depreciation
Other Non-cash Expenditure -(net)
Interest / Lease Charges (net)

579,426
(82,131 )
1,130,827

566,688
(11,472 )
995,030
1,628,122

1,550,246

2,436,857

2,680,623

Deduct :
(1)
(2)

Investment Income
Surplus/(Loss) on sale of assets -(net)

1,247
(5,564 )

6,916
(6,602 )
(4,317 )

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Less : Working Capital Changes
(1)
Increase in Trade and Other Receivables
(2) Increase in Inventories
Less:
(1)
Increase in Trade Payables

314

2,441,174
920,874
1,994,303

2,680,309
581,510
1,101,126

2,915,177

1,882,152

1,682,636

828,050
1,882,152

828,050

Net Working Capital changes

1,033,025

854,586

Cash Flow from Operations

1,408,149

1,825,723

Less : Direct taxes paid
Add : Exceptional items
Less : Prior period adjustments (Net)
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities
B. Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities
Inflow
(1)
Sale of Fixed Assets
(2) Interest received on Loans to Subsidiaries and Other
Companies
(3) Dividends received
(4) Decrease in Loans to Subsidiaries and Other
Companies
(5) Sale of Investments

(3)
(4)

Acquisition of Fixed Assets
Acquisition of Investments
(including application money)
Short term Investment in Mutual Fund
Less : Redemption of Short term Investment in
Mutual Fund
Increase in Loans to Subsidiaries and Other
Companies

210,496
1,615,227



6,562

1,236,288

1,621,789

70

738

1,236,218

1,621,051

1,639

4,577

25,527
1,247

31,240
590

246,250


573,200
56,326
274,663

Deduct Outflow
(1)
(2)

171,861
1,236,288

665,933

2,451,412
250,398
250,398

757,792

60,000







50


50

2,511,462
(2,236,799 )

Net Cash Inflow /(Outflow) from Investing Activities

103,102

860,944
(195,011 )
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008 (Contd.)
Rs.000
2007-08

2007-08

2007-08

2006-07

2006-07

2006-07

C. Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities
Inflow
(1)
(2)
(3)

Increase in Debentures
Increase in Working Capital Loans from Banks - (net)
Increase in Other Unsecured Loans (net)

750,000
1,865,671
1,159,337

Deduct Outflow
(1)
Redemption of Debentures
(2) Decrease in Term Loans - (net)
(3) Decrease in Unsecured Loans
(4) Dividends paid
(5) Interest / Lease charges - (net)

3,775,008

579,000
662,519

85,547
1,459,663

500,000
500,878


1,000,878

34,615
413,741
1,322,273
14
1,069,287
2,786,729

2,839,930

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities

988,279

(1,839,052)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents
Add : Balance at the beginning of the year

(12,302 )
565,187

(413,012)
978,199

Cash/Cash Equivalents at the close of the year

552,885

565,187

Notes :
1) Cash/Cash Equivalents exclude balances with banks in Margin Money Accounts : 31.3.2008 - Rs 839,305,099/-; 31.3.2007 Rs.430,185,550/-; 31.3.2006 - Rs. 354,119,733/-

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director
Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Schedules 1 to 20 annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet
as at and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2008
1. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised :
7,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each
118,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Issued :
5,626,320 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/- each.
73,159,805* Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Subscribed :
5,626,320 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up
73,114,129 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up

731,141

Add : Forfeited Shares, amounts originally paid up

116

* Includes 28,031 Equity Shares which have been kept
in abeyance by the Stock Exchange Authorities.
2.

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital Reserve :
As per last Account
Securities Premium Account :
As per last Account
Debenture Redemption Reserve :
As per last Account
Add / (Less) :
- Transferred to Profit and Loss Account
- Set aside during the year
Capital Redemption Reserve:
As per last Account
Revaluation Reserve :
As per last Account
General Reserve :
As per last Account
Add / (Less) :
- Adjustment on acount of Employee Benefits (net of tax)
[Refer Note B(18)(a)]
- Set aside during the year
Surplus as per annexed Profit and Loss Account

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

70,000
1,180,000

70,000
1,180,000

1,250,000

1,250,000

56,263
731,599

56,263
731,599

787,862

787,862

56,263

56,263
731,141

731,257

116
731,257

787,520

787,520

47

47

2,255,468

2,255,468

221,387

50,537

(129,687)
199,250


170,850
290,950

221,387

30,000

30,000

1,266,293

1,266,293

1,592,672

1,092,672

(12,001)



300,000

500,000
1,880,671
1,230,383

1,592,672
1,163,072

6,953,812

6,528,939
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
3.

SECURED LOANS [Refer Note B (2)]

a)
b)

Debentures
Long Term Loans in Indian Rupees from : #
- Financial Institutions
- Banks
- Companies
- Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd.

c)

Working Capital Loans from Banks

1,484,075

1,313,075
2,755,586
4,539,596
236,137
562

6,743,382
2,760,042

7,531,881
894,371

10,987,499

9,739,327

509,771
926,000
500,000
23,183


353,934
422,500

23,183
5,622

1,958,954

805,239

UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed Deposits [Refer Note B(2)(II)]
Inter Corporate Deposits
Short Term Loan from a Bank
Sales Tax Deferment Loan
Finance Lease (including Hire Purchase) from Companies

5.

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

2,650,590
3,813,191
279,601


# includes funded interest term loans in respective categories
4.

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

FIXED ASSETS [Refer Note B(3) ]
(a)

Assets

Rs.000
GROSS BLOCK ( At Cost / Book Value)
As at
Additions/
1st April, Adjustments
2007

Freehold Land
Leasehold Land
Buildings and Roads
Plant and Machinery
Furniture,Fixtures,etc.
Vehicles
Assets acquired on
Finance Lease :
(including Hire Purchase)
Plant and Machinery
Vehicles

1,279,115
42,994
1,267,430
8,517,813
104,479
48,688

29,301 @
9,250 ^
64,797
577,288
13,484
3,355

Deductions/
Adjustments

Adjustments/
Additions/
(Deductions)
to Revalued
Assets


1,357 *

(115,574)
3,377
(50,231)








189,124 $
52,414 $




DEPRECIATION
As at
31st March,
2008

As at
1st April,
2007

For the Recouped
year during the
year

1,308,416


50,887


1,332,227 409,807 37,695
9,210,675 4,387,205 504,176
114,586
53,554
6,024
102,274
16,901
4,213




As at
31st March,
2008

As at
31st March,
2007



(466)
(42,618)
1,549
(29,193)



447,968
4,933,999
58,029
50,307

1,308,416
50,887
884,259
4,276,676
56,557
51,967

1,279,115
42,994
857,623
4,130,608
50,925
31,787

111,738
30,428







98,776
27,914
6,519,742




Total

11,502,057

697,475

80,467

 12,119,065 4,982,315 579,426

71,438 #

5,490,303

6,628,762

Previous years Total

11,169,146

389,997

57,086

 11,502,057 4,460,177 566,688

44,550

4,982,315

6,519,742

@ Pending registration.
^ Pending execution of lease agreement and registration.
* Represents amount written off on account of amortization of leasehold land.
$ These assets have been reclassified on account of termination of Hire Purchase Agreement.
# Includes short depreciation provided in earlier years Rs 468,760/-; (Previous year Rs Nil).
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21,390
5,928

As at
31st March,
2008

189,124
52,414

(b) Capital Work-in-Progress, expenditure todate

90,348
24,500

NET BLOCK

2,421,158

568,878

9,049,920

7,088,620

SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
6.

INVESTMENTS, At Cost / Book Value
I.

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

Long Term Investments :

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

A. In Subsidiary Companies (Unquoted) :
11,749,500

600,000
11,976,762

(i)

Mukand Global Finance Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up
[Refer Note B(6)(e)]

(ii)

Mukand International Ltd.
Ordinary Shares of Stg. Pound 1/-each, fully paid up

(iii) Vidyavihar Containers Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.100/-each, fully paid up
[Refer Note B (6)(b)]
Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

262,495

262,495

29,956

29,956

616,300

616,300

184,890

184,890
431,410

(iv) Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Ltd.
70,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up
Less : Provision for diminution in the
value of investments

431,410

702

702

100

100
602

B. Trade ( Quoted ) :
11,660

(i)

Orissa Sponge Iron Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up
(Excludes 105 bonus equity shares received in
excess in an earlier year)

602
724,463

724,463

106

106

C. Trade ( Unquoted ) :
14,900
70,000

(i)

Metal Scrap Trade Corporation Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each, fully paid up

74

74

(ii)

Hospet Steels Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each, fully paid up

700

700
774

D. Others ( Quoted ) :
4,539,781

(i)

Mukand Engineers Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up
Less : Provision for diminution in the value of investments

197,806


6,097,200

1,000,000

(i)

Stainless India Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up
[Refer Note B 6(d)]

(ii)

Mukand Bekaert Wire Industries Pvt Ltd.
(A Joint Venture Company)
Equity Share of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up

197,806
90,213
197,806

E. Others ( Unquoted ) :

Carried Over - E

107,593

130,916

130,916

10,000



140,916

130,916
923,149

Carried Over Total - (A) to (D)

774

832,936
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
6.

INVESTMENTS, At Cost / Book Value (Contd.)

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

923,149

832,936

Brought Over Total - (A) to (D)
Brought Over - E
100
28,800

12

10

II.

Notes :
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

140,916

130,916

1

1

1,929

1,929

(iii) Lazard Creditcapital Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up
(iv) Bombay Forgings Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.66.67 each
fully paid up [Refer Note B(6)(a)]
(v)

Pradip Realtors Pvt. Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each,
fully paid up (Rs.120/-); [Previous year (Rs.120/-)]

(vi) The Greater Bombay Co-operative Bank Ltd.
Equity Shares of Rs.25/-each,
fully paid up (Rs. 250/-) [Previous year (Rs. 250/-)]

Share Application Money
 Mukand Bekaert Wire Industries Pvt. Ltd.
[A Joint Venture Company]

142,846

132,846

1,065,995

965,782

50,000



1,115,995

965,782

All the Investments at I above have been classified by the Company as  Long Term Investments
in view of its intention to hold the same on a long term basis.
Management considers the investment in Stainless India Ltd. to be of a strategic nature and therefore, the diminution
in the value of these shares is not recognised.
Figures shown in brackets relate to the previous year.
Book Value as at
Market Value as at
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2008
2007
2008
2007
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000

Quoted Investments

197,912

107,699

Unquoted Investments

868,083

858,083

1,065,995

965,782

Details of current investments purchased and sold during the year
Units in mutual fund
HSBC Cash Fund-Inst. Plus-Daily Dividend
ICICI Prudential Inst. Liquid Plan-Super Inst. Daily Dividend
Kotak Liquid (Inst. Premium)-Daily Dividend
Kotak Floater Short Term-Daily Dividend
Principal Cash Management Fund-Daily Dividend
UTI Liquid Cash Plan Inst.-Daily Income Option-Reinvestment
UTI Liquid Plus Fund IP-Daily Dividend Reinvestment
Total
Mutual Fund Units Balance as on 31.3.08

3rd Proof Dt. 24/6/2005

Quantity
No. of Units

Cost of
Acquisition
Rs.

2,500,341.831
3,005,018.180
4,093,871.657
2,491,233.623
2,001,650.228
49,112.859
50,150.832

25,017,420.22
30,050,782.80
50,060,272.01
25,018,961.03
20,020,905.91
50,067,892.92
50,161,564.28

14,191,379.210

250,397,799.17

Nil
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES [Refer Note B(4)]
7. INVENTORIES [Refer Policy A(5)]
Stores, Spares, Fuel, Components and
Engineering Construction Materials
Loose Tools
Stock-in-trade :
Raw Materials
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
Goods for Trade:
- Finished Goods
Accumulated Contract Costs / Incomplete
Contract Work [Refer Policy A(7)(vi)]
Materials-in-transit

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

455,374
1,885

355,368
1,582

895,249
1,688,200
2,114,390

558,820
1,336,566
1,174,375

31,286



1,492,871
281,540
6,960,795

1,280,914
258,867
4,966,492

Inventories-As certified and valued by a Managing Director.
8.

SUNDRY DEBTORS, Unsecured
[Refer Policy A(6)(vi)(a)]
Over six months :
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision

259,823
(259,823)

1,606,306

1,583,926
259,823
(259,823)



Others :
Considered good

9.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash on hand (including cheques on hand
Rs. 103,831,072/- Previous year Rs. 73,315,054/- )
Balances with Scheduled Banks :
(i)
In Current Accounts
(ii)
In Margin Money Accounts
(iii) In Deposit Accounts

1,606,306

1,583,926

4,135,205

3,836,620

5,741,511

5,420,546

104,724

74,543

1,103,685
183,781
1,392,190

84,623
430,186
153,594
668,403
252,427
995,373

31,046
298,676

14,424
310,672

1,671

5,213
2,856
8,069
4,269
3,800

331,393

328,896

178,981
839,305
85,399

Remittances-in-Transit
10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Export Incentives receivable
Interest receivable [Refer Note B (6)]
Facilities at Customers Site [Refer Policy A(6)(vi) (e)]
Opening Balance (at Direct costs,less amounts written off)
Add : Additions during the year

3,800
1,777
5,577
3,906

Less : Proportionate cost of facilites written off
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11.

LOANS AND ADVANCES, Unsecured, considered
good, unless otherwise specified
Loans to Subsidiaries :
Mukand Global Finance Ltd. [Refer Note B (6)(e)]
Vidyavihar Containers Ltd. [Refer Note B (6)(b)]
Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Ltd.
Other Loans and Advances [Refer Note B(6)]
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received [Refer Note B(6)(d) ]
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision

202,254
(202,254)

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

142,550
704,969
100
88,665

332,550
704,969
50
145,155

1,753,059

1,402,876
202,254
(202,254 )




1,753,059
535,483
321,888

Advance payment of Income-tax
MAT Entitlement Credit
Balances, etc. with 
Port Trust, Central Excise, etc.
Others $

7,283
93,388

$ Includes National Savings Certificates of the cost of Rs 100,000/-.
(Previous year Rs. 100,000/-) deposited with government departments.

1,402,876
371,325
229,153
14,852
90,238

100,671

105,090

3,647,385

3,291,168

2,462,586
2,956,881
140,667
565,145
140,245
7,944

1,346,643
2,471,629
64,927
488,524
28,762
7,370

6,273,468

4,407,855

421,790
375
58,142
164,190
85,547
9,418

318,176
375
71,571
98,138
85,547
10,441

739,462

584,248

47,549
8,599

50,412
52,326

56,148

102,738

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
12.

LIABILITIES
Acceptances
Sundry Creditors [Refer Note B(7)]
Due to Subsidiary Companies
Advances against Orders and Engineering Contracts [Re
Interest accrued but not due on Debentures and Loans
Due to Employees Provident Fund (since paid)

13.

PROVISIONS
for Taxation
for Premium on Redemption of Debentures
for Entitlement of Unavailed Leave
for Excise Duty on Finished Goods Stock
for Equity / Preference Dividends & tax thereon
for Warranty Costs

14.

DEFERRED REVENUE EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Interest and lease compensation during installation of leased assets
Front-end fees
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15.

SALES, SERVICES AND OTHER INCOME
i)

2007-08
Rs.000

Sales and Services
a) Gross Sales [Refer Note B(12)(a) (i) to (iii)]
Less: Excise Duty recovered
b)

c)

20,559,428
2,612,362

Net Sales
Income from Engineering Contracts and Job Work
[Refer Note B(12)(b) and (c)]
Less: Excise Duty recovered

17,947,066

16,494,973
1,778,875

124,807

164,270

Net Income from Engineering Contracts and Job Work
Income from Services rendered

1,319,603
1,211

1,614,605
1,341

19,267,880

18,110,919

42,815

39,062

Other Income
a)

Sale of Scrap and Sundries

b)

Sales-tax/VAT Refunds

c)

Gain on variation in foreign exchange rates

d)

Insurance Claims etc.

e)

Credit balances appropriated

13,862

7,252

f)

Other Miscellaneous receipts

22,607

27,337

g)

Excess provisions written back (net)

48,108

39,771

h)

Surplus on sale of current investments



6,326

i)

Surplus on account of sale of Assets

j)

Rent received

k)

Dividends (Gross) :
from Trade Investments
from Mutual Fund Investments

6,919

49,783

62,180

37,860

3,731

1,586

334

191

12,738

8,725

805
442

Total Other Income

16.

19,002,514
2,507,541

1,444,410

Total Sales and Services
ii)

2006-07
Rs.000

590

1,247

590

214,541

218,483

19,482,421

18,329,402

558,820

245,022

10,017,696

8,105,861

2,009

15,711

10,574,507

8,335,172

895,249

558,820

9,679,258

7,776,352

RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stocks
Add : Purchases
Less : Sales / Materials given on loan
Less : Closing Stocks
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17.

OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES

2007-08
Rs.000

Employees Remuneration, Benefits and Other Payments :
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Compensation and Other Payments
Contribution towards Employees State Insurance,
Provident, Gratuity and Other Funds
Welfare Expenses

2006-07
Rs.000

684,092

591,224

84,228
84,706

54,894
74,496
853,026

720,614

Manufacturing, Administrative and Selling Expenses :
Stores, Spares, Components,Tools, etc. consumed (a)
Contract execution costs [Refer Policy A(6)(vi)]
Power and Fuel consumed
Machining and Processing charges
Sub-contracting expenses
Other Manufacturing expenses
Rent (net)
Hire charges
Rates and Taxes
Insurance (net)
Advertisements
Repairs:
to Buildings
to Plant and Machinery (b)
to Other assets

3,177,165
875,120
1,277,016
957,263
233,144
104,706
9,552
18,792
23,749
17,600
2,673
18,976
49,872
20,704

Commission
Freight and Forwarding (net)
Directors Fees and Travelling Expenses
Bad Debts,debit balances and claims written off
Less : Doubtful debts provided in earlier years

1,029


Provision for doubtful debts/advances
Proportionate cost of facilities written off
Loss on assets discarded
Loss on assets sold
Loss on variation in foreign exchange rates
Miscellaneous Expenses (c)
Bank Charges
Amortization of Leasehold Land

(a)
(b)
(c)

After adjusting sales Rs. 3,688,930/- (Previous year Rs. 31,043,083/-).
Excludes spares consumed for repairs.
Includes non-recoverable excise duty Rs. 292,926/- and sales tax
Rs.168,458/-on sales (Previous year Rs. 93,734/- and Rs. 920,268/- respectively).
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2,889,907
1,257,848
1,280,339
931,694
208,152
91,311
7,754
15,089
13,573
20,917
2,332
27,388
46,285
35,616

89,552

109,289

62,110
631,987
657

56,148
663,729
610
56,235
56,116

1,029

3,906
3,776
2,122
52,222
310,672

119
19,554
4,269
674
6,119
33,788
281,028
7,854,813
99,660
1,357

7,894,243
74,930
1,357

8,808,856

8,691,144

SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
18.

VARIATION IN OPENING AND CLOSING STOCKS
Opening Stocks :
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
Goods For Trade:
- Finished Goods
Accumulated Contract Costs / Incomplete Contract Work
Closing Stocks :
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
Goods For Trade:
- Finished Goods
Accumulated Contract Costs / Incomplete Contract Work

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

1,336,566
1,174,375

1,076,999
804,958





1,280,914

1,036,846

3,791,855

2,918,803

1,688,200
2,114,390

1,336,566
1,174,375

31,286



1,492,871

1,280,914

5,326,747

3,791,855

(1,534,892)
Variation in Excise Duty on Opening & Closing Stocks of Finished Goods

81,891

(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks
19.

(1,453,001)

(873,052)
30,848
(842,204)

FINANCE AND LEASE CHARGES
[Refer Note B (2)(C)]
Interest on Debentures
Interest on Fixed Loans
Interest to Banks and Others

146,826
929,873
403,582
1,480,281

Less :
Interest Capitalised
Interest Income (Gross) $

105,742
383,786

Finance Management Charges #
Lease Rentals

$
#

106,525
878,749
190,852
1,176,126

350,170
489,528

350,170

990,753
73,101
66,973

825,956
102,036
67,038

1,130,827

995,030

Tax deducted at source on Interest Income is Rs. 85,313,433/- (Previous year Rs. 70,050,186/-)
Includes proportionate front end fee written off Rs. 53,718,237/- (Previous year Rs. 100,235,823/-)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
20. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ACCOUNTS.
A.

Statement of significant Accounting Policies :
1.

Basis of Accounting :
The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles, the applicable mandatory Accounting Standards and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.

2.

Fixed Assets:
(a) Gross Block:
(i)

All fixed assets except leasehold land are stated at cost. However, fixed assets, which are revalued by the Company,
are stated at their revalued book values.

(ii)

Leasehold Land is stated net of amounts written off on amortisation.

(b) Depreciation/ Amortisation:

3.

(i)

The Company provides depreciation on all its assets on the Straight Line Method in accordance with the provisions of
Section 205 (2)(b) of the Companies Act, 1956.

(ii)

Depreciation on Buildings and Furniture & Fixtures acquired upto 31st March, 1987 is provided at the rates of depreciation
prevalent at the time of acquisition of the assets in accordance with Circular No.1 of 1986 [1/1/86-CL-V] dated 21.5.1986
issued by the Company Law Board.

(iii)

Depreciation on addition to assets referred to in (ii) above, acquired on or after 1st April, 1987 is provided at the Straight
Line Method rates specified from time to time in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

(iv)

Depreciation on assets under Plant & Machinery group in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, is provided over
the recomputed Specified Period, at the rates given in the said Schedule from time to time, in accordance with
Circular 14/93 dated 20th December, 1993, issued by the Department of Company Affairs.

(v)

Depreciation in respect of assets used for long term engineering contracts is provided on the estimated useful life of the
assets.

(vi)

Depreciation on addition to assets or on sale / discardment of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such
addition or upto the month of such sale / discardment, as the case may be.

(vii)

Cost of Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

Technical know-how:
Cost of technical know-how capitalised is amortised over the period of agreement or six years whichever is lower.

4.

Investments:
Long term Investments are stated at cost of acquisition or book value; book value being arrived at after adjusting provisions for
diminution in values of each investment individually, provided, such diminution is not temporary. While disposing of a part of the
holding of an individual investment the carrying amount allocated to that part is determined on the basis of average carrying
amount of the total marketable holding of the investment. Current investments are stated at lower of cost of acquisition and fair
value.

5.

6.

Inventories:
(i)

Finished goods (including for trade), work-in-process, semi-finished goods for trade, Raw materials, Stores, Spares, Fuel,
Components, and Loose Tools are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Materials-in-transit are valued
at cost-to-date. Construction materials are valued at cost less amount written off over its estimated useful life. Cost comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition including excise duty payable on goods produced. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and
obsolete items, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company. The cost formulae used for determination
of cost are either First in First Out or Average Cost, as applicable.

(ii)

Goods manufactured on Capital Account for captive use are, until capitalised, included in the inventory of Work-in-Process
and/or Finished Goods, and are valued at cost, at the close of the year.

Foreign currency translations :
(i)

All transactions in foreign currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing as at the date of the transaction.

(ii)

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted in Indian currency at
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the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing at the close of the year. The resultant gain or loss is accounted for during the
year.
(iii)

7.

In respect of forward exchange contracts entered into towards hedge of foreign currency risks, the difference between the
forward rate and the exchange rate at the inception of the contract is recognised as income or expenditure over the life of
the contract. Further, the exchange differences arising on such contracts are recognised as income or expenditure along
with the exchange differences on the underlying assets/liabilities. Profit or Loss on cancellations/renewals of forward
contracts is accounted for during the year.

Recognition of Income and Expenditure:
(i)

Revenues/incomes and costs/expenditure are generally accounted on accrual as they are earned or incurred.

(ii)

Sale of Goods is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership which is generally on the dispatch of
goods. Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of dates of On Board Bill of Lading.

(iii)

Liability for Excise Duty and Customs Duty payable on goods held in bond at the year end is provided for.

(iv)

Project Development expenses pending adjustment / recoverable:
Expenditure incurred during developmental and preliminary stages of the Companys new projects, are carried forward.
However, if any project is abandoned, the expenditure relevant to such project is written off through the natural heads of
expenses in the year in which it is decided to be abandoned.

(v)

Benefit on account of entitlement to import duty-free materials under the Advance Licence and Duty Entitlement Pass-Book
Scheme, is estimated and accounted in the year of export.

(vi)

Accounting for Long Term Engineering Contracts:

(vii)

(a)

Revenue for engineering contract work executed (including supplies & services) is recognised on the basis of percentage
completion method and only after the work has progressed to the extent of 10% in each composite contract. Till such
time, all the costs are carried forward to the next accounting year as Accumulated Contract Costs under Inventories.
Recognition of revenue is matched with expenses incurred (on accrual basis) after considering the contract value with
associated costs. Costs and Revenue are both recognised upto 90% and debtors are reflected accordingly. Balance
is recognised only upon the Preliminary/Final acceptance of job by the client. Periodic advances received from customers
are not considered as income.

(b)

Income which arises out of invoicing of contract work and the contract costs which are accounted on accrual basis, are,
both, credited to income or charged to revenue, as the case may be, only after atleast 10% of the total estimated
contract costs (i.e. direct and indirect costs) are incurred (on accrual basis). Till such time, all the costs are carried
forward to the next accounting year as Accumulated Contract Costs under Inventories and recognition of revenue
is correspondingly postponed. Direct costs include all expenses specifically attributable to the contract. Variation in
estimates of contract costs are updated each year by technical certification.

(c)

Accumulated Contract Costs, after the stage when they are not any further to be carried forward in terms of (b)
above, are charged to revenue to the extent not specifically attributable to the contract and balance is transferred to
Incomplete Contract Work under Inventories.

(d)

Variations by way of escalation in price and quantum of work is recognised as revenue in the year in which claims are
lodged as per the terms of contract. Other claims are recognised as revenue only upon final acceptance by the
customer.

(e)

All facilities in the nature of assets created at the customers site and which are to be abandoned at the end of the
contract, are, when under construction, carried forward at Direct cost to-date as Facilities at Customers site - Under
Construction. Upon subsequent completion, they are carried forward as Facilities at Customers site-Completed(both
being grouped as Other Current Assets). The completed facilities are written off in equal annual instalments over the
period commencing from the year of completion of the facility upto the contracted year for completion of the contract.
Billable reimbursements against such facilities, if separately identified in a contract, are similarly credited in equal
annual instalments against the write-off over the said period.

(f)

The contracted claims for liquidated damages, arising out of defaults attributable to the Company are accounted in
the year claims are accepted.

(a)

Rent payable for premises taken on lease is charged to revenue.

(b)

In respect of Other Assets taken on lease upto 31-3-2001:
(i)

Interest and other charges are deferred over the specified period of the assets or the term of lease, whichever
is shorter.

(ii)

Lease rentals are charged over the specified period of the assets or the term of lease, whichever is shorter.
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The specified period is worked out at the rates of depreciation on the Straight Line Method in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956, and it commences from the year in which the asset is installed.
(c)

Transactions relating to Other Assets taken on lease on or after 1.4.2001 are accounted as per Accounting Standard
19 (AS-19) on Leases.

(d)

Assets taken on operating lease are those where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained
by the lessors. Lease rentals are charged to revenue on accrual basis.

(viii) Share and Debenture issue expenses and Premium on Redemption of Debentures are charged to the Profit and Loss
Account. An equivalent amount (net of tax) is withdrawn from the available balance in Securities Premium Account and
credited to the Profit and Loss Account.
(ix)
8.

Front-end fees paid on borrowings are amortised over the period of loans/debentures or over a period of three years
whichever is shorter.

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known.

9.

Research and Development Expenditure:
Revenue expenditure, including overheads on Research and Development, is charged out as expenditure through the natural
heads of expenses in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure which results in the creation of capital assets is taken to fixed
assets and depreciation is provided, as applicable.

10. Employee Benefits :
(a)

Short Term Employee Benefits:
(i)

(b)

Short term employee benefits are recognised as expenditure at the undiscounted value in the Profit and Loss Account
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

Post Employment Benefits:
(i)

Defined Contribution Plans :
Companys contribution to the superannuation scheme, pension under Employees Pension Scheme, 1995 etc. are
recognised during the year in which the related service is rendered.

(ii)

Defined Benefit Plans :
Gratuity :
Gratuity liability is covered under the Gratuity-cum-Insurance Policy of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) by
Mukand Employees Gratuity Fund. The present value of the obligation is determined based on an actuarial valuation,
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately
in the Profit and Loss Account. The amount funded by the Trust administered by the Company under the aforesaid
Policy, is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plan, to recognise the obligation on a net basis.
Provident Fund:
Monthly contributions are made to a Trust administered by the Company. The interest rate payable by the Trust to the
beneficiaries is notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any,
between the return on investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate.

(c)

Long term compensated absences are provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(d)

Termination Benefits :
Termination Benefits are charged to Profit and Loss Account in the year of accrual.

11.

Expenditure during Construction:
(a)

New Projects :
In case of new projects and substantial modernisation / expansion at existing units of the Company, all pre-operating
expenditure, initial spares acquired with machineries, interest on specific borrowings for the purpose, interest on general
(interest bearing) funds of the Company whenever utilised for such expenditure and costs incurred for raising borrowings
specifically for the purpose, are capitalised pro-rata to the cost of qualifying fixed assets upto the date of installation.

(b)

Other Major Fixed Assets:
In case of acquisition/construction of major fixed assets, initial spares acquired with the assets, interest on specific borrowings
for the purpose, are capitalised pro-rata to the cost of qualifying fixed assets upto the date of acquisition / installation.
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12.

Accounting for taxes on Income:
Current tax is determined as an amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
eligible for set-off in subsequent years (as per tax laws), is recognized as an asset by way of credit to the Profit and Loss Account
only if there is convincing evidence of its realization. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement
receivable is reviewed to reassure realization. The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax is recognized, subject
to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets arising due to timing differences, being the difference between
taxable income and accounting income which originate in one year and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
years. Deferred tax assets arising on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are
recognized, only if there is a virtual certainty of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. At each Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed, to reassure realisation.
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax is made on the basis of the fringe benefits provided/deemed to have been provided during the
year at the rates and values applicable to the relevant Assessment Year.

13.

Impairment of Assets:
The Carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment
loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

14.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

B.

Notes forming part of the Accounts:
1.

Share Capital

(a)

Share Capital includes:

(b)
2.

(i)

359,400 Equity Shares issued to Vendors as fully paid up for consideration other than cash, pursuant to a contract.

(ii)

611,667 Equity Shares [including 293,510 issued to Vendors in (i) above] issued as fully paid up for consideration other than
cash on account of conversion of Deferred Shares into Equity Shares.

(iii)

10,538,644 Equity Shares issued as fully paid up Bonus shares by capitalising Securities Premium Account and Reserves.

(iv)

1,750,000 Equity Shares issued on 1st July, 1983 as fully paid up on conversion of the convertible portion of Convertible
Debentures.

(v)

23,759 Equity Shares issued on 1st March, 1993 as fully paid up, at par, to the shareholders of Beco Engineering Company
Ltd., pursuant to a scheme of merger.

The 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares are redeemable in five equal annual installments commencing from
September, 2019.
Loan Funds
(I)

Secured Loans
(A) Nature of Security
(i)

Debentures [included in Schedule 3(a)]
(a)

800,000, 10.50% (2006-18) Mortgage Debentures, 2,500,000, 10.5% (2006-18) Mortgage Debentures,
2,500,000, 10.5% (2006-18) Mortgage Debentures, 50 Floating Rate (2007-11) Mortgage Debentures are
secured by way of first pari-passu charge against mortgage of Companys immovable assets at Kalwe
and Dighe, Dist. Thane, in the State of Maharashtra and Ginigera/Kankapura, Dist. Ginigera in the State
of Karnataka and movable assets both present and future of the Company and such mortgage and
charge shall rank pari-passu with the existing mortgages and charges created in favour of financial
institutions, banks and a company for their loans subject to the prior charge of the Companys bankers on
stocks (excluding machinery spares) and book debts for working capital facilities referred at (iii) below.

(b)

25, 10.75% (2008-09) Mortgage Debentures and 5,000, 10.75% (2008-09) Mortgage Debentures are secured
by first pari passu charge against one residential premises at Mumbai and also by second charge against
two other residential premises and office premises at Mumbai.
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(ii)

(iii)

Loans [included in Schedule 3(b)]
(a)

Loans from Financial Institutions, Banks and a Company are secured by way of first pari-passu charge
against mortgage of Companys immovable assets at Kalwe and Dighe, Dist. Thane, in the State of
Maharashtra and Ginigera/ Kankapura, Dist. Ginigera, in the State of Karnataka and Companys movable
assets, both present and future, and such mortgage and charge shall rank pari-passu with the existing
mortgages and charges created in favour of Financial Institutions, Banks and a Company for their loans
and in favour of Trustees for all the series of Debentures at (i)(a) above except loan at (ii)(d) and working
capital facilities from banks at (iii) below, subject to the prior charge of the Companys bankers on stocks
(excluding machinery spares) and book debts.

(b)

Priority Loan of Rs.2,100,000,000/- (balance outstanding as at 31.3.2008  original loan was for
Rs.3,000,000,000/-) from ICICI Bank Ltd. is secured by way of a first charge against mortgage of Companys
immovable assets at Kalwe and Dighe, Dist. Thane, in the State of Maharashtra and Ginigera/Kankapura,
Dist. Ginigera, in the State of Karnataka and Companys movable assets, both present and future. The said
charge shall rank pari-passu with the existing mortgages and charges created in favour of financial
institutions, banks and a company for their loans and in favour of Trustees for all series of debentures at
(i)(a) above, subject to the prior charge of the Companys bankers on stocks (excluding machinery spares)
and book debts for working capital facilities referred at (iii) below.

(c)

Loan of Rs.100,000,000/- from a Company is secured by way of a first charge against specific equipment
of Road Construction Division.

(d)

Vehicle Loans from ICICI Bank Ltd., and HDFC Bank Limited amounting to Rs.7,657,982/- are secured by
way of hypothecation of specific vehicles.

Working Capital Facilities [included in Schedule 3(c)]
Working Capital Facilities from the Banks [included in Schedule 3(c)] and other non-funded facilities are secured
by hypothecation of stocks (excluding machinery spares) and book debts. The said facilities are also secured by
way of second and subservient charge (yet to be created) against mortgage of Companys immovable assets at
Kalwe and Dighe, Dist. Thane, in the State of Maharashtra and Ginigera/Kanakapura, Dist. Ginigera in the
State of Karnataka. The said charge shall be second and subservient to all other first charges created in favour
of Trustees for all the series of Debentures and Lenders for their loans.
Note : Security given for the above referred debentures and loans exclude stocks, book debts, fixed assets of
Road Construction Division (RCD), and two residential flats [second charge created in favour of debenture holders
at (i) (b) above] as the same is given as security for working capital and other facilities provided by Dena Bank to
M/s JSC Centrodorstroy, Russia with whose co-operation Company is executing a Road Construction Project in the
State of Uttar Pradesh. It also excludes security given for loans referred at (ii)(c) and (ii)(d) above and 48 acres of
grant land at Kalwe and Dighe, Dist. Thane in the State of Maharashtra.

(B) Terms of Redemption and rescheduling of loan instalments
Terms of Redemption
(i)

800,000, 10.50% (2006-18) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.100/- each aggregating Rs.80,000,000/were redeemable in full on expiry of 3 years from 2nd April, 1998. Rescheduled for repayment in 144 monthly
installments from 2006 to 2018 in terms of Financial Restructuring Package approved by Corporate Debt
Restructuring Cell (CDR) in July 2003.

(ii)

2,500,000, 10.5% (2006-18) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.100/- each aggregating Rs.250,000,000/were redeemable in full on expiry of 5 years from 15th April, 1998. Rescheduled for repayment in 144 monthly
installments from 2006 to 2018 in terms of financial restructuring package approved by CDR in July 2003.

(iii)

2,500,000, 10.5% (2006-18) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.100/- each aggregating Rs.250,000,000/were redeemable in one installment on 15th October, 2001. Rescheduled for repayment in 144 monthly installments
from 2006 to 2018 in terms of financial restructuring package approved by CDR in July 2003.

(iv)

50 Floating Rate (2007-11) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.5,000,000/- each aggregating
Rs.250,000,000/- are redeemable in 5 equal annual installments of Rs.50,000,000/- each commencing from 15th
December, 2007.

(v)

25, 10.75% (2008-09) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.10,000,000/- each aggregating Rs.250,000,000/are redeemable on 29th September, 2008.

(vi)

5,000, 10.75% (2008-09) Privately placed Mortgage Debentures of Rs.100,000/- each aggregating Rs.500,000,000/are redeemable in two equal instalments on 9th February, 2009 and 13th March, 2009.

43

3rd Proof Dt. 24/6/2005

NOTES (Contd.)
Rescheduling of loan instalments
(i)

The principal term debt is to be repaid in 144 monthly installments commencing from April 2006 and ending in
March, 2018 with a pre-determined ballooning schedule. Installments due during the year have been paid.

(ii)

Interest/lease rentals payable on all the principal term debt for the period from 1st April, 2002 to 30th September,
2004 have been converted into Future Funded Interest Term Loan (FFITL) and would be repaid in 96 installments
commencing from April 2005 and ending in March, 2013 with a ballooning schedule. Installments due during the
year have been paid.

(C) Effect and Progress of Restructuring Package
In terms of the Financial Restructuring Package (FRP) approved by the Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Cell in July
2003, the terms of security, redemption and conversion have been rescheduled. A separate disclosure is made
hereunder to explain the same, as also the progress made so far :
(i)

Promoters/Associates have pledged 11,426,514 equity shares and 546,652 cumulative redeemable preference
shares out of their share-holding in the Company.

(ii)

Pledge of Promoters holding of shares of Bajaj Auto Limited is to the tune of Rs.211 million.

(iii)

The Company shall ensure balance realization of non-core assets and investments aggregating Rs.1,503.60
million (net of amounts realized till 31.3.2008) over a specified time schedule ending on 31st March, 2010.

(iv)

Debts of about Rs.118 million were to be converted into equity. CDR has waived this condition on Company
repaying debt along with interest @ 18% per annum compounded on quarterly basis w.e.f. 1st April, 2002.
Company, over the years has been accounting for interest @ 10.50% per annum compounded on quarterly
basis. The difference in interest payable amounting to Rs.92,112,526/- has been accounted during the year
including Rs.22,841,390/- for the year and Rs.69,271,136/- for earlier years which is included in prior period
adjustments.

(v)

Lenders shall have a right of recompense upto 12% per annum in excess of the effective IRR charge in FRP for initial
8 years.

(vi)

In the event of default, as defined in the restructuring package, the lenders have the right to cancel, suspend,
reduce or modify all or any of the relief and concessions or vary the terms and conditions thereof.

(II) Unsecured loans
Fixed Deposits in Schedule 4 includes unclaimed Fixed Deposits as at 31st March, 2008 amounting to Rs.4,358,000/(Previous Year Rs. 5,081,000/-).
3.

Fixed Assets :
(i)

The Company has been allotted leasehold land at Trans -Thane Creek Industrial Area, Dighe, at a provisional occupancy
price of Rs.20,400,000/- as per the consent terms dated 4th February, 1992 signed between the Company and Maharashtra
Industrial Development Corporation (MIDC) in the Court at Thane. The Order of the Court at Thane by which partial refund of
Rs.5,400,000/- was granted, is under appeal by MIDC in the Bombay High Court.

(ii)

Revaluation :
Free-hold land at Kalwe / Dighe, Thane as at 30.6.1983 were revalued as at 30.6.1984. To reflect the current fair market
value, the Company further revalued the freehold land at Kalwe as at 31.3.2001 during November, 2001. The registered
valuer had carried out the valuation on the basis of the then market values of these lands. The addition to assets on account
of this revaluation, aggregating Rs.1,143,588,433/- was correspondingly credited to the Revaluation Reserve during the year
ended 31st March, 2002.

(iii)

Gross Block of Buildings as at 31st March, 2008 includes value of offices, residential flats and garages in co-operative
societies/proposed co-operative societies/association of apartment owners and cost of time-sharing-property at a Holiday
Resort, aggregating Rs. 64,267,383/- at cost (Previous Year Rs.61,619,077/-) [including cost of shares in co-operative societies
Rs.7,250/- (Previous Year Rs.7,250/-)].

(iv)

Capital Work-in-Progress includes Machinery-in-transit, if any.

(v)

Fixed assets include net book value of assets at Ginigera Steel Plant aggregating Rs.24,000,000/- which have been retired
from active use and are held for disposal as tabulated hereunder. The said net book value is on the basis of realisable value
as per valuation report of an approved valuer.
Assets held for disposal:
Rs.000
Description
Plant & Machinery

As at
31.3.2008

Depreciation
as at 31.3.2008

Net Block
as at 31.3.2008

42,952

18,952

24,000
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(vi)

4.

5.

6.

Borrowing costs on long term funds whenever replaced by current short term borrowings is capitalized to qualifying asset
as and when the borrowings are utilized for capital expenditure.
Current Assets
(a) Inventory of finished goods/work-in-process includes jobs on capital account for captive use amounting to Rs.35,445,957/(Previous Year Rs. 23,237,515/-).
(b) In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Loans and Advances, continue to have
a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, unless otherwise stated.
Debtors
The Company had entered into an agreement dated 31st March, 1998 to sell 500,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each of Kalyani
Mukand Ltd., for an aggregate consideration of Rs.69,375,000/-. Under the terms of the said agreement, the sale of shares was
based on certain conditions to be complied with subsequent to sale, and which conditions have been fulfilled.
Since the sale and transfer of the shares were considered to be legally complete upon execution of the Agreement of Sale of
shares, the Company had taken credit for the consideration aggregating Rs.69,375,000/-, during the Accounting Year 1997-98.
The Company has, upto the close of the accounting year 2007-08, received amounts aggregating Rs.39,971,860/- against the
aggregate consideration of Rs.69,375,000/-.
Loans, Advances, Debts etc.
(a) The Company has investments of Rs. 1,929,600/- in Bombay Forgings Limited (BFL), and has debts amounting to Rs.802,828,396/(Net of recoveries of Rs.203,753,007/-) (collectively referred to as Exposures) due from BFL whose net worth has turned
positive and BIFR has discharged BFL from the purview of provisions of SICA. No provision is considered necessary at present
by the management for diminution in value of investments and possible losses on account of non recovery of debts since the
management relies on the valuation of unencumbered assets of BFL as at 31st March, 2008 at Rs.533,319,000/- and the
earnings from the ongoing business of BFL. Under the circumstances, the Auditors have relied upon the judgement of the
management on the adequacy of the cover, the classification of the Exposures as Good and expectation of full realisability
of the Exposures by the Company.
(b) The Company has an investment of Rs.616,300,000/- in Vidyavihar Containers Ltd. (VCL) a wholly owned Subsidiary. The
Company has outstanding balances of loans amounting to Rs.704,968,557/- and of interest receivable due from VCL
amounting to Rs.155,674,392/- (collectively referred to as Exposures).
The Company has charged interest aggregating Rs.164,742,612/- upto 30th September, 2001 and accordingly, taken credit
for interest in the respective years on loans and advances then given to VCL.
Although the Net Worth of VCL has eroded, the management considers it appropriate to recognise diminution in value of
investments only upto an amount of Rs.184,890,000/- and make no further provision for possible non-realisability of balance
Exposures in VCL, since the management believes that the ultimate losses that may result on account of balance Exposures
will depend on the amount that will be realized from the unsecured financial assets of VCL. Under the circumstances, being
unable to make an informed judgment, the Auditors have relied upon the judgement of the Management on the adequacy
of the cover, the classification of the Exposures as Good and the expectation of full realisability of the Exposures by the
Company.
(c) The Company has loans aggregating Rs.84,910,639/-, interest dues and other receivables aggregating Rs.10,751,767/recoverable from investment companies (collectively referred to as Exposures). The net worth of these companies has
eroded. Against the undertakings given by these companies to pay the Principal amount alongwith interest both aggregating
Rs.95,662,406/- upto 31st March, 2003 before the end of financial year 2008-09, the Company has agreed to waive interest
on these loans w.e.f. 1st April, 2003. The Company has stopped recognising this interest income since 1st April, 2003. The
management believes that ultimate losses that may result on account of these Exposures will depend upon the amount that
would be realised from the unsecured financial assets of these companies. Under the circumstances, being unable to make
an informed judgement, the Auditors have relied upon the judgement of the management on the adequacy of the cover, the
classification of the Exposures as Good and expectation of the realisability of the Exposures from these companies.
(d) The Company has an investment of Rs.130,915,468/- in equity shares of Stainless India Limited (SIL), has trade debts
Rs.145,672,567/- (including considered doubtful and provided during an earlier year Rs.144,980,561/-), and has trade
advances, aggregating Rs.610,404,764/- [including granted during the year (net) Rs.118,149,299/- and doubtful and provided
during an earlier year Rs.200,000,000/-] and guarantees amounting to Rs.8,303,000/- given to a Bank on behalf of SIL
(collectively referred to as Exposures).
The Net-worth of SIL has eroded and a reference has been filed with BIFR. Although, the Companys Exposures have
increased, the Company continues to classify the unprovided Exposures as fully realisable, since, the Management continues
to rely on both, the valuation of unencumbered assets of SIL as at 31st March, 2008 at Rs.271,956,585/- and the earnings from
the ongoing business of SIL, to be adequate to cover and fully realise the amount of such Exposures of the Company. Since
the Company considers the investment in equity of SIL, to be of a strategic nature, the management does not consider it
necessary to recognise any diminution in value of investments or to make provision for possible non-realisability of unprovided
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(e)

(f)

Exposures in SIL. Under the circumstances, being unable to make an informed judgement, the Auditors have relied upon
the judgement of the management on the adequacy of the cover, the classification of the unprovided Exposures as Good
and the expectation of full realisability of such Exposures by the Company.
The Company has an investment of Rs.262,495,000/- in, and loans and interest recoverable from Mukand Global Finance
Limited (MGFL), a wholly owned subsidiary, aggregating Rs.261,398,390/- (collectively referred to as Exposures) whose
recovery is dependent upon realisation of the financial assets that MGFL stands invested into at the close of the year. Being
a matter where realisability of MGFLs investments is held to be judgemental, the classification of Companys Exposures in
MGFL as Good becomes a matter of Managements opinion. Under the circumstances, being unable to make an informed
judgement, auditors have relied upon the judgement of the Management on the adequacy of the cover, the classification of
the Exposures as Good and the expectation of full realisability of such Exposures by the Company.
Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans recoverable from subsidiaries/associates and shares held by loanees
(stipulated under clause 32 of the listing agreement with Stock Exchanges).
Rs. 000
Name of the Party
Outstanding amount
Maximum amount
during the Year

I]

II]

III]

Subsidiaries :
Mukand Global Finance Ltd.  interest free.
Vidyavihar Containers Ltd.
Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Ltd.
Associates :
i)
Catalyst Finance Ltd.
ii)
Fusion Investments & Financial Services Ltd.
a)

7.

2006-07

142,550
704,969
100

332,550
704,969
50

332,550
704,969
100

332,550
1,230,169
50

45,300
39,611

45,300
39,611

45,300
39,611

45,300
39,611

Maximum no. of shares
held by Loanee
during the Year

As at
31.3.2008

As at
31.3.2007

2007-08

2006-07

647,160
825,680

647,160
825,680

647,160
825,680

647,160
825,680

Preference Shares held by the loanees in the capital of the Company:

Name of the Loanee

i)
ii)

2007-08

No. of shares held by
Loanee

Catalyst Finance Ltd.
Fusion Investments & Financial Services Ltd.
b)

As at
31.3.2007

Equity Shares held by the loanees in the capital of the Company:

Name of the Loanee

i)
ii)

As at
31.3.2008

No. of shares held by
Loanee

Catalyst Finance Ltd.
Fusion Investments & Financial Services Ltd.

Maximum no. of shares
held by Loanee
during the Year

As at
31.3.2008

As at
31.3.2007

2007-08

2006-07

161,790
206,420

161,790
206,420

161,790
206,420

161,790
206,420

(a)

Sundry Creditors in Schedule 12 include (i) Rs.Nil due to creditors registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME) (ii) Rs.2,956,880,767/- due to other creditors and (iii) Rs.Nil being overdrawn
current account balances as per books (Previous Year Rs.154,727,917/-).

(b)

During the year, no amounts have been paid beyond the appointed day in terms of the MSME and there are no amounts
paid towards interest. Further, there is no interest accrued / payable under the said Act at the close of the year.
The disclosure above is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers under
the MSME.
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8.

Disclosures in respect of derivative instruments:
i)

Derivative instruments outstanding as at 31st March, 2008 - USD 7.28 Million.

ii)

Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments as at 31st March, 2008
Amount in Millions
USD

9.

EURO

SEK

Debtors

3.13

-

-

Creditors

28.26

0.05

4.58

Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
(i)

Disputed matters in appeal/contested in respect of:
- Income Tax (interest if any, unascertained)
- Excise Duty, Customs Duty etc.
- Sales Tax, Works Contract Tax etc.
- Other matters

(ii)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as these are
disputed and pending disposal at various fora.

31.3.2008
Rs.000

31.3.2007
Rs.000

11,990

63,558

30,324

38,129

149,670

147,723

5,903

6,197

73,229

59,807

58,891

65,777

785,202

925,315

6,569

6,569

234,650

188,097

For items (i) & (ii)
The Company has taken legal and other steps to protect its interest in
respect of these matters, which is based on legal advice and/or precedents
in its own/other cases. It is not possible to make any further
determination of the liability which may arise in these matters.
(iii)

Bills discounted with the Bankers and others
Sale Bills discounted

(iv)

Guarantees and Counter guarantees given by the Company on behalf of :- Other Companies

(v)

Bonds / Undertakings given by the Company under concessional duty/
exemption to Customs / Excise Authorities (Net of redemption applied for)

(vi)

Bonds given by the Company against import of machinery under EPCG Scheme.
(Net of redemption applied for)

(vii)

Liability that may arise on account of loss on realisation of assets in terms of the agreement and out of pending litigations
referred in the agreement for sale of shares of Kalyani Mukand Ltd  Amount not ascertained at present. In the matter of
pending litigations, the Arbitral tribunal has given an award whereby no liabilities devolve on the Company. The said
award has been challenged in the High Court.

(viii) Undertakings given by the Company during the F.Y. 1999-2000 for indemnifying the acquirer of the shares of Metso Minerals
Mumbai (Pvt.) Ltd., in the event of non-fulfilment of covenants under the transactions. Claims which arose on completion of
certain Sales Tax assessments, aggregating Rs.231,627/- have beeen duly accounted during an earlier year. No further
amounts have been claimed during the year.
(ix)

There have been delays in payment of tax deducted at source. Interest payable on delays has been accounted for in
respect of cases where appropriate orders have been received from Income Tax authorities.

(x)

Lenders shall have a right of recompense upto 12% per annum in excess of the effective IRR charged in FRP for initial 8 years.

(xi)

The matter relating to emoluments of staff and officers which was remitted by the Honble Supreme Court to the Industrial
Tribunal for adjudication afresh according to the law, has been disposed off by the said Tribunal by way of a fresh award
on the dispute referred to it. The Company has implemented the said award during the previous year. The said award is
under challenge in the High Court of Bombay by way of a Writ Petition, and is pending disposal.
Demand for Annual Bonus for the financial years 1995-96 to 2006-07 by Staff and Officers Association is pending at different
stages in proceedings under The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. These employees are statutorily not covered by The Payment
of Bonus Act, 1965 and many of the employees are also not covered by The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. Liability arising there
from cannot therefore be determined at present.
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(xii) Government of Maharashtra has served a Demand Notice on the Company for payment of electricity duty for power
generated during the period 1.4.2000 to 30.4.2005 and penal interest thereon in Companys Captive Power Plant amounting
to Rs.142,743,646/-. The Writ Petition filed by the Company is pending disposal by the Honble Bombay High Court which is
awaiting the decision of the Honble Supreme Court of India in respect of Writ Petitions filed by other Captive Power
Producers.
(xiii) Under provisions of an Order dt. 16th August, 2006 issued by the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), it
is mandatory for Companys grid synchronised captive power plant to use a minimum of 4% renewable energy like wind
power, co-generation etc. in its total consumption of energy generated from its own captive power plant for the FY 2007-08
or alternatively pay a penalty of Rs.5/- per KWH of the shortfall in use of renewable energy to the monitoring/implementing
agency viz., Maharashtra Energy Development Agency. The aforesaid Order is being contested before MERC. The liability
that may arise on consumption of captive power during FY 2007-08 is estimated at Rs,21,553,090/10.

11.

A claim towards difference in price of calibrated iron ore for the period 1st April, 2006 to 28th February, 2007 amounting to
Rs.330,678,120/- has been raised by a supplier in March 2007. The Company has been legally advised that the supplier cannot
seek this price revision under a concluded agreement and hence no provision is made in the Accounts. The issue is referred to an
arbitral tribunal whose award is awaited. Moreover, the said supplier has also unilaterally increased the price of calibrated iron
ore w.e.f. 1st April, 2007. This issue too is to be settled by the aforesaid arbitral tribunal. However, pending such determination
of final price, the supplier has raised invoices at an ad-hoc interim price, which liability, has been accounted.

(a)
(b)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on Capital Account and not provided for
Operating lease :

31.3.2008
Rs 000

31.3.2007
Rs 000

1,321,053

1,136,983

Lease assistance facilities of Rs.150,000,000/- (utilisation by way of advances to the suppliers of equipment as at 31.3.2008
Rs.35,731,649/-) from Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services Limited is to be secured by way of equitable mortgage
on the Companys one residential premises at Mumbai.
(c)

Future Rental obligations in respect of premises taken on lease.
1. For a period not later than one year.
2. For a period later than one year and not later than five years.
3. For a period later than five years.
Total

12.

Rs.000
4,233
242
4,475

Sales in  Schedule 15:
(a)

(b)

(i)

Sales is net of Returns, etc. relating to earlier years aggregating Rs.6,798,892/- (Previous Year Rs.11,410,272/-),
Rebates and Allowances on Sales relating to earlier years Rs.17,318,481/- (Previous Year Rs. 16,076,016/-) and is also
net of early payment discounts aggregating Rs.67,595,010/- (Previous Year Rs. 70,827,023/-).

(ii)

Sales includes export incentives (net) Rs.60,126,251/- (Previous Year Rs.37,162,856/-).

(iii)

At the close of the year, the Company has, estimated and accounted, an amount of Rs.9,771,568/- (Previous Year
Rs. 8,878,872/-) as Export Incentives, being the benefit on account of entitlement to import duty-free materials under
Duty Entitlement Pass-Book Scheme, as detailed in Accounting Policy A (7) (v).

Disclosure regarding Income from Engineering Contracts :
Rs. 000

(c)

(i)

The amount of Contract revenue recognised as revenue during the year.

(ii)

The aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognised losses) upto 31.3.2008.

583,994

(iii)

The amount of advances received (Gross)

-

(iv)

The amount of retentions (included in sundry debtors) (net balance)

-

6,894,556

The management has, keeping in view the accounting policy A(7)(vi) adopted by the Company, technically determined the
realisable value of Accumulated Direct Costs (including incidental income by way of disposal of plant and equipment at the
end of the contract) compared to relatable revenues and claims raised by the Company in respect of its Road Construction
Contracts. Although the outcome of the Road Construction activity cannot be estimated with reliability at present, it is the
opinion of the management that in view of the substantially large claims by the Company for incremental jobs executed,
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escalations and time over-runs, losses currently expected are already recognized till the close of the year. Since realization
of these claims is a judgmental matter, on which auditors are not able to make an informed judgment, the auditors have
placed reliance on the Managements judgment of the losses currently expected, reliasability of claims and determination
of the period in which further losses if any, should be entirely recognized and fully expensed.
13.

Disclosures in respect of provisions for warranty costs:
Rs.000
Opening Balance
as at 1.4.2007

Provided during
the year

Utilized during
the year

Reversed during
the year

Closing Balance
as at
31.3.2008

10,441

9,418

7,802

2,639

9,418

14.

Revenue expenditure including overheads on Research and Development incurred and charged out during the year through the
natural heads of expenses amount to Rs.5,684,227/- (Previous Year Rs.3,796,186/-). Capital expenditure incurred during the year
amounts to Rs.8,413,929/- (Previous Year Rs.2,890,911/-).

15.

The Company had, during the Financial Year 1998-99, entered into a strategic alliance with Kalyani Group companies, which
alliance operates through a Company  Hospet Steels Limited.
Expenses and liabilities arising out of this alliance are shared on the basis stipulated in the relevant Agreements, and its
accounting in the books of the Company is carried out, accordingly.
Wherever, due to the terms of the alliance, estimations are required to be made in respect of expenses, liabilities, production, etc.,
the same have been relied upon by the auditors, being technical matters.

16.

Exceptional Items shown in the Profit and Loss Account:
Expenditure:

(i)

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

Compensation to a customer

-

51,041

Total

-

51,041

Income:
(i)

Bad Debts/Bad Advances/Doubtful Debts which were written-off/provided
earlier recovered during the year

(ii)

17.

-

6,562

Provision for diminution in the value of investments written back.

90,213

62,195

Total

90,213

68,757

Net Total

90,213

17,716

310

2,287

69,271

-

Prior period adjustments represents :
(i)

Debit relating to earlier years

(ii)

Difference in interest payable to lenders
[Refer Note 2(C)(iv)]

(iii)

Credit relating to earlier years

(240)

(1,549)

(iv)

Depreciation adjustments (Net)

469

-

69,810

738

Total
18.

(a) The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15 on employee benefits w.e.f. 1.4.2007. Pursuant to the adoption, the
transitional liability amounting to Rs.18,180,247/- towards gratuity (net of deferred tax Rs.6,179,466/-) has been adjusted
against the general reserve as at 1st April, 2007 as required under the Standard.
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Details in respect of gratuity are as under:
Liability to be recognised in Balance Sheet

Rs.

Present Value of Funded Obligations
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Net Liability
Change in Plan Assets (Reconciliation of Opening & Closing Balances)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 1.4.2007
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Gain / (Losses)
Contributions
Benefits Paid
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31.3.2008
Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of obligation
Change in defined Benefit Obligation
Obligation as at 1.4.2007
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Actuarial Losses / (Gain)
Benefits Paid
Obligation as at 31.3.2008
Expenditure to be recognised during the year
Current Service cost
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognised during the year
Total Expenditure included in Employees Emoluments
Assumptions
Discount Rate (per annum)
Expected rate of Return on Assets (per annum)
Salary Escalation Rate

19.

202,380,282
57,003,362
145,376,920
Rs.
58,501,435
5,041,961
7,839,378
(14,379,412)
57,003,362
Rs.
183,001,794
10,467,755
13,725,135
9,565,010
(14,379,412)
202,380,282
Rs.
10,467,755
13,725,135
(5,041,961)
9,565,010
28,715,939
7.50%
9.30%
5.00%

(b) In terms of the strategic alliance with Kalyani Group Companies, the Company has accounted for its share towards gratuity
in respect of employees of Hospet Steels Ltd. amounting to Rs.4,805,803/- on the basis of an actuarial valuation.
(c) In respect of certain employees of Road Construction Division, liability for gratuity is provided at actuals, since the projects are
for shorter duration. Such liability as at 31st March, 2008 (including Rs.418,064/- for the year) aggregate Rs.897,974/-.
(d) An amount of Rs.27,800,289/- as contribution towards defined contribution plans [including Rs.6,500,149/- in terms of
strategic alliance referred in (b) above] is recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss Account.
Components of Deferred tax assets/liabilities are as under:
As at
Charge/(Credit)
As at
31.3.2007
for the year
31.3.2008
2007-08
Rs000
Rs.000
Rs000
Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax liability on account of :
a) Depreciation
1,353,595
(68,001)
1,285,594
b) Others
159,404
39,344
198,748
1,512,999
(28,657)
1,484,342
Deferred Tax Asset on account of :
a)
Employee benefits, etc.
66,439
(5,792)
72,231
b) Taxes, Duties, Cess, Interest to Banks/FIs, etc.
456,783
59,494
397,289
c)
Provision for doubtful debts
157,060

157,060
d) Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Business Loss, etc.
479,270
266,715
212,555
e)
Others
46,960
(3,625)
50,585
1,206,512
306,487

Net Deferred Tax Liability

316,792
288,135

889,720
594,622
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20. Computation of Profit for Earnings per Share:

21.

2007-08
Rs. 000

2006-07
Rs. 000

Profit
Less : Preference Share Dividend and tax thereon

522,421
(7)

932,691
(7)

Profit including exceptional items attributable to Equity Shares
Less: Exceptional items (net of tax)

522,414
90,213

932,684
16,165

Profit excluding exceptional items attributable to Equity Shares

432,201

916,519

Remuneration to the Managing Directors and Whole-time Directors paid / payable during the year, under Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 1956:Managing Directors
Whole-time Directors
2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

Salaries

7,280 *

4,200

1,200 *

2,700

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

1,044

1,134

108

594

Perquisites

8,324
1,135

5,334
577

1,308
341

3,294
758

9,459

5,911

1,649

4,052

3

2

1

2

No. of Directors
* includes encashment of leave
i)

Remuneration to the Managing Directors and Whole-time Directors has been paid in terms of approvals of Central
Government to the said appointments.

ii)

As the employee-wise break-up of contribution to Group Gratuity Scheme is not ascertainable, the amounts relatable to the
individual Directors have not been included above.

22. Payments to Auditors:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

As Auditors
As Tax Auditors
For Company Law and allied matters
For Certification work
For other matters
Out of pocket expenses

23. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Relationship:
(i)

Subsidiaries:

(ii)

Other related parties where control / significant influence exists:

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

2,500
175
600
165
685
133

2,000
175
600
237
500
234

4,258

3,746

Mukand Global Finance Ltd., Mukand International Ltd.
Vidyavihar Containers Ltd., Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Ltd.

Mukand Engineers Ltd., Bombay Forgings Ltd., Stainless India Ltd., Hospet Steels Ltd., Kalyani Mukand Ltd., Lineage
Investments Ltd., Catalyst Finance Ltd., Econium Investments & Finance Ltd., Fusion Investments & Financial Services Ltd.,
Primus Investments & Finance Ltd., Conquest Investments & Finance Ltd., Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd. and Mukand Bekaert
Wire Industries Pvt. Ltd.
(iii)

Key Management Personnel:
Niraj Bajaj, Rajesh V. Shah, Suketu V. Shah, Vinod S. Shah

(iv)

Relatives of key management personnel and enterprises in which significant influence can be exercised by persons at
(iii) above or their relatives where transactions have taken place:
Viren J. Shah, Bansri R. Shah

Note : Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
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(b)

Details of transactions with the related parties referred in (a) above

Nature of transactions
1

2

Stores



Semi Finished Goods

4

5

336,866
(201,245 )

Sales:
 Stores / Scrap


3

a (i) above

Purchases:
 Raw Material


Rs.000

Semi Finished/ Finished Goods

1,306,752
(1,162,789 )

Expenditure:
 Rent


Interest paid



Sub-Contracting Expenses



Service Charges



Share of expenses under an alliance



Remuneration



EDP Data Processing Services



Equipment Hire Charges



Conversion Charges



Rebates and Allowances



Other miscellaneous

4,964
( )
2,534
(2,092 )

6,776
(7,994 )

Income:
 Rent


Interest received



Service Charges



Conversion / Machining Charges



Other miscellaneous

3,488
(11,796 )
1,209
(1,304 )

Other payments:
 Reimbursement of expenses


Reimbursement of expenses on account
of deputation of employees

Related parties as referred in
a (ii) above
a (iii) above
a (iv) above
64,331
(165,247)
4
(1,859)
167,399
(33,682)
614
(151)
218,600
(188,558)
180
( )
19,512
(20,675)
7,540
(39,766)
14,563
(5,904)
277,521
(179,774)
42,000
(42,000)
466
( )
13,729
(12,103)

(51,041)

217
(217)

11,108
(9,963)

1,751
(1,456)

876
(900)

4
(9)

11,898
()
414
(335)

41,248
(7)

2
(18)
127
(156)
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Rs.000
Nature of transactions
6

Other receipts:
 Reimbursement of expenses


7

8



Related parties as referred in
a (i) above
a (ii) above
a (iii) above

Reimbursement of expenses on account of
deputation of employees

Investments, Finance & Advances:
 Loans/Advances repaid by Loanees


Loans/Advances given



Loans repaid



Purchase of shares



Application money for shares

Outstanding balances at the close of the year:
 As Debtors
Less : Provision for doubtful debt
Debtors (net of provison)


As Creditors



Loans & Advances-Receivables (incl. int.)
Less : Provision for doubtful Adv.
Loans & Adv. (net of provision)



Property Deposits given



Property Deposit taken



Property Deposit received back


(21,092)

3,662
(6,833)

(620)

192,100
(528,200)
50
(3,050)

6,933

121,827
()
121,827
(108,177)
140,667
(64,927)
1,122,141@
()
1,122,141
(1,311,494)

Guarantees given by the Company



Counter Guarantees given on behalf of the Company



Collateral given on behalf of the Company

16,292
(6,933)
10,000
()
50,000
()
948,501
(144,981)
803,520
(776,393)
2
(34,695)
737,695#
200,000
537,695
(423,625)

178,179
(194,471)
8,303
(221,690)
60,000
(60,000)
**
(**)

Figures in bracket relate to previous year.
** 3,869,089 Equity Shares and 546,652 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of the Company.
*** 3,869,089 Equity Shares of the Company.
@ Includes Rs. 803,918,557/- on which interest income not accounted out of prudence / interest waived during the year.
#

Includes Rs. 84,910,639/- on which interest income not accounted out of prudence.
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)

44
(13)


(1,500)

650
(650)

Term Loan (incl. int.)


(75,909

a (iv) above

1,500
(2,000)

***
(***)

NOTES (Contd.)
24. Annual Installed Capacity, Production, Sales, Opening & Closing Stocks
Products

Installed
Capacity
as at
31.3.2008
Tonnes

I.

Goods Manufactured
1)
Bars, Rods, Coils of Special &
Alloy Steel and Stainless Steel

Opening Stock
as at
1.4.2007
Tonnes

365,628
(365,628 )

13,083
(11,525 )

Consumption
2007-08
(captive)

Tonnes

Sales
2007-08
(Net of Excise
duty)

Tonnes

1,006,856 * 295,970 **
(729,611 )* (303,417 )**

Tonnes

8,725
(6,831)

285,711
(295,028)

Rs.000

Tonnes

Rs.000

15,442,730
14,617 1,837,704 *
(14,116,764 ) (13,083 ) (1,006,856 )*

E.O.T. Cranes,Portal Cranes,Metallurgical
Equipment, Machinery for Crushers,Grinders,
Processing and Handling of Bulk Material.

9,410
(9,410 )

179
( )

17,709
( )

13,141
(10,359 )

1,390
(290 )

11,922
(9,890 )

1,989,304
(1,749,741 )

8
(179 )

1,409
(17,709 )

3)

Castings of Alloy & Other Steel.

2,400
(2,400 )

27
( )

1,659
( )

1,383
(1,331 )


( )

1,410
(1,304)

108,116
(117,862 )


(27 )


(1,659 )

4)

Electrical Energy
(Captive Power Generation)

5)

Others

6)

Semi Finished Billets & Blooms

22.10 M.W.
(22.10 M.W. )

()

148,151
(75,347 )

632,500
(632,500 )

108.58
107.77
(107.17 )
(106.29 )
Million Kwh Million Kwh

494,105 @ @
(494,614 ) @@

248,486
(283,843 )
3,916
(6,772 )

1,174,375
(804,958 )

275,277
(148,151 )

158,430
(226,763 )
17,947,066
(16,494,973 )

2,114,390
(1,174,375 )

Goods For Trade
Products

Opening Stock
as at
1.4.2007
Tonnes

Purchases
2007-08

Rs.000

Tonnes

Rs.000

Sales
2007-08
Tonnes

a)

Stainless Steel Flats


( )


( )

1,670
(547 )

154,114
(32,322 )

1,235
(547 )

b)

Spares, Assemblies and Components
of Industrial Machinery


( )


( )

1,385
(432 )

122,315
(62,873 )

1,385
(432 )


( )


( )

Total II

Closing Stock
as at
31.3.2008
Rs.000
|
|
Refer $
|

276,429
(95,195 )

Total I + II
*
**
@@
$

Closing Stock
as at
31.3.2008

2)

Total I
II.

Rs.000

Production
2007-08

Tonnes

Rs.000

435
( )

31,286
( )


( )


( )

435
( )

31,286
( )

17,947,066
(16,494,973 )

Including Excise Duty.
Steel production includes 9,917 Tonnes (5,363 Tonnes) converted outside but excludes 456 tonnes (-) converted from customers' material.
Includes 173,544 Tonnes (169,250 Tonnes) converted from customers material.
Sales value in respect of Goods for trade are included in respective categories shown in Note 24(I) above.

NOTES
1. Licensed capacity is not applicable in terms of notification No. S.O.477 (E) dated 25th July 1991 issued by Government of India.
2. Annual Installed Capacity is certified by a Managing Director and being a technical matter, is accepted by the Auditors as correct.
3. Figures shown in brackets relate to the previous year.
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25. Details of Imported and Indigenous Materials Consumed:
(a) Raw Materials (including materials taken on loan and after adjustments relating to return of materials taken on loan) :
2007-08
Quantity
Amount
Tonnes
Rs.000

2006-07
Quantity
Amount
Tonnes
Rs.000

Important basic raw materials :

}

Scrap*
Pig Iron
Hot Briquetted Iron
Ferro Nickel/Nickel
Ferro Chrome
Structural and other Steel @
Billets / Blooms
Coke 159,706@@
Iron Ore
Other raw materials

}

96,642

3,457,476

101,098

1,764,333

626
15,278
10,270
6,614
164,625
472,919

1,022,914
851,432
355,651
172,768
2,491,275
694,448
633,294

1,715
19,199
7,298
8,447
159,706
444,997

2,080,827
778,422
235,554
231,535
1,577,419
365,812
742,450

9,679,258

2007-08
% of total
Amount
Consumption Rs.000
Imported
Indigenous

7,776,352

2006-07
% of total
Amount
Consumption
Rs.000

56.08
43.92

5,428,049
4,251,209

57.77
42.23

4,492,170
3,284,182

100.00

9,679,258

100.00

7,776,352

*
Excludes Internal Arisings
@ Includes for Capital jobs
@@ Used for conversion to hot metal for making pig iron, blooms, billets and rounds
(b) Stores, Spares, Components etc. (net of sales):
2007-08
% of total
Amount
Consumption Rs.000
(i)

Stores, Spares etc.
-

(ii)

2006-07
% of total
Amount
Consumption
Rs.000

Imported
Indigenous

Components
Imported
Indigenous

14.10
85.90

421,426
2,567,648

14.85
85.15

407,384
2,335,165

100.00

2,989,074

100.00

2,742,549

18.62
81.38

35,020
153,071

12.67
87.33

18,666
128,692

100.00

188,091

100.00

147,358

3,177,165
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26. (a) Value of imports (C.I.F. basis) (including in-transit)

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

4,807,328

4,025,167

443,191

361,827

11,736

-

433,941

104,852

5,696,196

4,491,846

65,072

40,851

Technical Consultancy / Services and Engineering contract execution costs (Net of tax)

3,789

397

Foreign Travel

8,533

6,199

Legal and Professional fees

1,763

8,144

Other matters

9,751

9,912

88,908

65,503

1,751,828

1,367,396

19,131

27,221

1,209

1,304

1,772,168

1,395,921

Raw Materials
Stores, Spare Parts, Components and Fuel
Goods for trade
Capital goods

(b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(Including amounts capitalised and amounts recovered)
Interest and Bank charges (Net of tax)

27. Earnings in Foreign Exchange
Exports (F.O.B. Value)
Income from Engineering Contracts
Others

28. Information on Joint Venture :
(on the basis of the un-audited Financial Statements)
i)

ii)

Jointly controlled entity  Mukand Bekaert Wire Industries Pvt. Ltd.
Country of incorporation
Percentage of ownership interest

:
:

Contingent liabilities in respect of Joint Venture.
a) Directly incurred by the Company.
b) Share of the Company in contingent liabilities incurred by jointly controlled entity
(to the extent ascertainable)

iii)

Capital commitments in respect of Joint Venture.
a) Direct capital commitments by the Company.
b) Share of the Company in capital commitments of the jointly controlled entity

iv)

Interest in the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses with respect to jointly controlled entity.
A) Assets :
a) Fixed Assets (Net Block)
Capital Work in progress

India
50%

As at
31.3.2008
Rs.000


190,000
104,473

3,027
620
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As at
31.3.2008
Rs.000
b)
c)

d)
e)
B)

Investments
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank balances
Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
Preliminary expenses
Pre-operative expenses

14,460


36,827
863
882
1,815
9,223

Liabilities:
1. Loan Funds :
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans
2. Current Liabilities and Provisions :
Liabilities
Provisions
3. Deferred Tax Liability.



6,909
808


29. Figures less than Rs.500/- have, wherever necessary, been shown at actuals in brackets since all the figures have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand.
30. Previous years figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary.
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director
Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT
Statement Pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956
Balance Sheet Abstract and Companys General Business Profile
I.

Registration Details

State Code

2726

Registration No.
31

Balance Sheet Date

3

11

2008

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. thousands)
Public Issue

Rights Issue





Bonus Issue

Private Placement





III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds
(Amount in Rs. thousands)

Sources of Funds

Total Liabilities

Total Assets

21,282,407

21,282,407

Paid-Up Capital
787,520

Reserves & Surplus
6,953,812

Deferred Tax
594,622

Application of Funds

Secured Loans
10,987,499

Unsecured Loans
1,958,954

Net Fixed Assets
9,049,920

Investments
1,115,995

Net Current Assets
11,060,344

Misc. Expenditure
56,148

Accumulated Losses

IV. Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. thousands)
19,482,421

Total Expenditure net of
Exceptional Items
18,583,473

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
898,948

Profit/(Loss) After Tax
522,421

Earnings per Share in Rs.

Dividend Rate %

7.15

10

Turnover and Other Income

V.

Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)
7228 30 29
Item Code No. (ITC Code)
Product Description

Bars and rods of Alloy Steel

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

7221 00 12

Product Description

Bars and rods, Hot rolled Coils of Stainless Steel

Item Code No. (ITC Code)

7227 90 40

Product Description

Bars and rods, coils, Other Alloy Steel (CHQ)
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES :
Name of the Subsidiary
Company
The financial year of the
subsidiary company ended on
Number of shares in the
subsidiary company held by
Mukand Ltd., at the above date
Equity
Percentage of holding
The net aggregate of profits,
less losses of the subsidiary
company so far as they concern
the members of Mukand Ltd.
(i)

Vidyavihar
Containers
Limited

Mukand
International
Limited

Mukand
Vijayanagar
Steel Ltd.

31st March,
2008

31st March,
2008

31st March,
2008

31st March,
2008

11,749,500
100

11,976,762
100

600,000
100

70,000
100

Rs.000

Rs.000

USD

Rs.000







@

39,955



518,699

@

3,202

(12,609)
(Loss)

332,116

@

178,203

(739,574)
(Loss)

(150,660)
(Loss)

@.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Dealt with in the accounts of
Mukand Ltd., amounted to:
(a)
(b)

(ii)

Mukand Global
Finance Limited

for the subsidiarys
financial year
for the previous financial
years of the subsidiary
since it became subsidiary
of Mukand Ltd.

Not dealt with in the accounts
of Mukand Ltd., amounted to:
(a)

for the subsidiarys
financial year
(b) for the previous financial
years of the subsidiary since
it became subsidiary of
Mukand Ltd.
Changes in the interest of
Mukand Ltd., between the end
of the subsidiarys financial
year and 31st March, 2008
Material changes between the
end of the subsidiarys financial
year and 31st March, 2008
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

@

Fixed assets
Investments
Moneys lent by the subsidiary
Moneys borrowed by the
subsidiary other than for
meeting current liabilities

The subsidiary has no revenue transanctions, hence profit and loss account has not been prepared.

Niraj Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director

Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Mukand
Limited, its subsidiaries and its joint venture as at 31st March, 2008, and
the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended.

tests or other auditing procedures and therefore any adjustment to its
balances could have consequential effect on the attached consolidated
financial statements.
We did not audit the financial statements of Mukand Bekaert Wire
Industries Private Limited (MBWI) (a Joint Venture Company) for the year
ended 31st March, 2008. A statement of Assets and Liabilities reflecting
total assets of Rs. 135,432,863 as at 31st March, 2008 and statement of
financial results for the year ended on that date reflecting total revenue
of Rs. NIL has been compiled by the Management of MBWI which has
not been subjected to any validation tests or other auditing procedures
and therefore any adjustment to its balances could have consequential
effect on the attached consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of Mukand Limited. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
standards in India. These Standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that the attached consolidated financial statements have
been prepared, by the Company, in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements,
Accounting Standard (AS) 23  Accounting for Investments in Associates
in Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard (AS) 27
 Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures and on the basis of
the separate audited financial statements of Mukand Limited, its
subsidiaries, its joint venture and its associates, except, for MBWI and
SIL where accounts have not been audited.

We have audited the financial statements of Mukand Global Finance
Limited (an Indian Subsidiary) whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 1,499,275,591 as at 31st March, 2008 and total revenue of
Rs. 121,535,525 for the year then ended.

We draw attention to Note Nos. 8(a), 8(b), and 8(c) relating to the
Exposures by Mukand Limited and its subsidiaries, on which, we have
placed reliance regarding the adequacy of cover, the classification of
the Exposures as Good and the expectation of full realisability of the
Exposures and Note No. 12(b) relating to our inability to determine
accrued losses and corresponding realisabilities in respect of the Road
Construction Contracts;

We did not audit the financial statements of Vidyavihar Containers Limited
and Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Limited (both Indian Subsidiaries) and
Mukand International Limited (a Foreign Subsidiary), for the year ended
31st March, 2008 whose financial statements, together, reflect total assets
of Rs. 1,282,345,771 as at 31st March, 2008 and total revenue of
Rs. 1,778,861,860 for the year then ended. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in
respect of the said subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, and
subject to  (i) our reservation expressed in the preceding paragraph,
(ii) the consequential effect, if any, on account of possible adjustments
stated above in respect of MBWI and SIL, we are of the opinion that:

We have audited the financial statements of Mukand Engineers Limited
(MEL) (an Indian Associate) whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 1,071,162,260 as at 31st March, 2008 and total revenue of
Rs. 286,242,048 for the year then ended.

(a) the Consolidated Balance Sheet gives a true and fair view of
the consolidated state of affairs of Mukand Limited, its
subsidiaries and its joint venture as at 31st March, 2008;
(b) the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, gives a true and fair
view of the consolidated results of operations of Mukand
Limited, its subsidiaries and its joint venture for the year then
ended, and

We did not audit the financial statements of Bombay Forgings Limited
(an Indian Associate) for the year ended 31st March, 2008 whose financial
statements, reflect total assets of Rs. 786,040,000 as at 31st March, 2008
and total revenue of Rs. 826,491,000 for the year then ended. These
financial statements have been audited by another auditor whose report
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included in respect of the said associate, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditor.

(c)

the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair
view of the consolidated cash flows of Mukand Limited, its
subsidiaries and its joint venture for the year ended on that
date.
For and on behalf of

We did not audit the financial statements of Stainless India Limited (SIL)
(an Indian Associate) for the year ended 31st March, 2008. A statement
of Assets and Liabilities reflecting total assets of Rs. 578,463,441 as at
31st March, 2008 and statement of financial results for the year ended
on that date reflecting total revenue of Rs. 519,142,609 has been compiled
by the Management of SIL which has not been subjected to any validation

Mumbai: 20th May, 2008

DALAL & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
ASHISH DALAL
Partner
Membership No.: 33596
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March, 2008

I

SOURCES OF FUNDS

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March, 2008
31st March,
2008
Rs.000

Schedule

(1) Shareholders Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and
Surplus

1

787,520

2

5,915,957

(3) Loan Funds
(a) Secured Loans
(b) Unsecured Loans

3
4

5,484,621

10,998,993
2,506,716

Total

INCOME
Sales, Services and
Other Income
Gross Sales and Services
Less: Excise Duty recovered
Net Sales and Services
Other Income

787,520

6,703,477
594,593

(2) Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

6,272,141
306,367

EXPENDITURE
Raw Materials Consumed
Operating and Other Expenses
Variation in Opening and
Closing Stocks
Purchases for Trade
Finance and Lease Charges
Depreciation

9,757,165
1,192,880
13,505,709

10,950,045

20,803,779

17,528,553

5

(iii) Net Block
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress

(2) Investments

12,132,160
5,496,467

11,547,574
4,990,493

6,635,693
2,430,381

6,557,081
568,878

6

9,066,074

7,125,959

443,693

389,732

Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances
Other Current Assets
Loans and Advances

Less:
Current Liabilities and
Provisions
(a) Liabilities
(b) Provisions

7
8
9
10
11

12
13

6,961,417
5,708,476
1,507,554
149,640
4,730,865

4,968,463
5,426,396
1,067,515
136,730
4,128,017

19,057,952

15,727,121

7,064,965
755,563

5,222,566
594,864

7,820,528

5,817,430

Net Current Assets
(4) Deferred Revenue
Expenditure
(to the extent not written
off or adjusted)

11,237,424

14

Total
Notes forming part of the
Consolidated Accounts

103,171

20,803,779

17,528,553

Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

7,793,472
8,728,345

18

(1,451,942)
314,428
1,163,696
579,829
19,180,118

(841,244)
132,559
1,025,864
567,088
17,406,084

(348,109)
18,832,009
866,699

(83,180)
17,322,904
1,191,671

19

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman &
Managing Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director
K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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9,678,263
8,895,844

Balance carried to Balance Sheet
Weighted average number of
Equity Shares outstanding during the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share
including Exceptional Items (in Rs.)
Basic and diluted earnings per share
excluding Exceptional Items (net of tax) (in Rs.)
Nominal value of share (in Rs.)
Notes forming part of the
Consolidated Accounts
20

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman &
Managing Director

16
17

Balance brought forward from previous year
Balance available for Appropriations
Appropriations:
Transferred from Debenture
Redemption Reserve
129,687
Transferred to Debenture
Redemption Reserve
(199,250)
Transferred to General Reserve
(300,000)
Transferred to Reserve Fund
in terms of Section 45-I C (i) of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(643)
Transferred from/to Currency
Fluctuation Reserve
(407)
Preference Dividend
(6)
Equity Dividend
(73,114)
Tax on Equity / Preference Dividend
(12,427)

20

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman &
Managing Director

20,946,636
2,671,811
18,274,825
239,750
18,514,575

Profit before tax
(Less): Provision for taxation:
Fringe Benefit Tax (incl. Share of FBT under
Strategic alliance Rs. 1,524,120/-)
Wealth Tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
MAT Credit Entitlement
Profit after tax
(Less):
(Short) provision for tax
Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associates (net)
Prior Period Adjustments (net)
(including share in Associates)[Refer Note 17(b)]

9,909,691

56,588

22,166,924
2,737,169
19,429,755
268,953
19,698,708

15

Profit for the year before tax
Add / (Less):
Exceptional Items (net)
(including share in Associates) [Refer Note 17 (a)]

(3) Current Assets,
Loans and Advances
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

2006-07
Rs.000

(Less):
Expenditure transferred to
Capital Accounts/Capital
Work-in-Progress

II APPLICATION OF FUNDS
(1) Fixed Assets
(a) Assets
(i) Gross Block
(ii) Less: Depreciation

2007-08
Rs.000

Schedule

34,613

28,219

901,312

1,219,890

(10,080)

(9,046)

(630)
(100,550)
(294,404)
92,735
588,383

(630)
(131,414)
(306,812)
229,153
1,001,141

(1,101)
19,067

(465)
(32,206)

(69,956)
536,393
59,475
595,868

3,063
971,533
(147,395)
824,138

(170,850)
(500,000)
(2,270)

(456,160)
139,708

(5,996)
(6)
(73,114)
(12,427)
(764,663)
59,475

73,114,129

73,114,129

7.34

13.29

6.86
10.00

12.92
10.00

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman &
Managing Director
Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director
K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008
2007-08

A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities
Profit before Tax and exceptional items
Add back:
a) Depreciation
b) Other Non-cash Expenditure - (Net)
c) Diminution in the value of Investment
d) Finance and Lease Charges - (Net)

2007-08

2006-07

2006-07

866,699

1,699
46,250
(5,561)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Less: Working Capital Changes
a) Increase in Trade and Other Receivables
941,377
b) Increase in Inventories
1,992,954
1,829,252

Net Working Capital Changes

567,098
(25,815)

985,840
1,659,540

1,527,123

2,526,239

2,718,794
7,830

(6,348)

42,388
2,483,851

1,482
2,717,312

356,529
1,100,706

2,934,331
1,829,252

Rs.000
2006-07
1,191,671

579,861
(89,599)
49,440
1,119,838

Deduct:
a) Investment Income
b) Profit on sale of Investment
b) Surplus/(Loss) on sale of assets - (Net)

Less:
Increase in Trade Payables

2007-08

1,269,893
1,105,079

1,457,235

1,269,893

187,342

Cash flow from Operations
Less: Direct taxes paid

1,378,772
182,229

2,529,970
226,087

Add: Exceptional items

1,196,543


2,303,883
6,562

1,196,543

2,310,445

Less: Prior period adjustments
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities
B. Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities
Inflow
a) Sale of Fixed Assets
b) Interest received on loans to Companies
c) Dividends received
d) Decrease in Loans to Companies
e) Sale of Investments - (Net)
Deduct Outflow
a) Acquisition of fixed assets (Including additional Goodwill)
b) Pre-Operative Expenses
c) Acquisition of Investments - (Net)
d) Short term Investment in Mutual Fund
264,858
Less : Redemption of Short term Investment
250,398
in Mutual Fund

1,649
29,322
1,699
56,250
56,681

70

738

1,196,473

2,309,707

145,601

2,454,706
9,230





14,460


e) Increase in Loans to Companies
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

4,869
35,265
1,504
48,050
56,326

146,014

860,611
606
100


233,300
2,478,396

1,094,617

(2,332,795)

(948,603)

62

3rd Proof Dt. 24/6/2005

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008 (Contd.)
2007-08
C . Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities
Inflow
a) Increase in Debentures
b) Increase in Working Capital Loans from Banks - (Net)
c) Increase in Other Unsecured Loans - (Net)
Deduct Outflow
a) Redemption of Debentures
b) Decrease in Term Loans - (Net)
c) Decrease in Other Unsecured Loans - (Net)
d) Dividend paid
e) Finance and Lease Charges - (Net)

2007-08

750,000
1,859,327
1,349,337

2007-08

2006-07

3,958,664

579,000
662,519

85,547
1,463,194

2006-07

500,000
518,716


Rs.000
2006-07

1,018,716

34,615
413,741
1,308,139
14
1,088,237
2,790,260

2,844,746

1,168,404

(1,826,030)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents
Add : Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Cash/Cash Equivalent balance - Acquisition of subsidiaries

32,082
585,563


(464,926)
1,050,451
38

Cash/Cash Equivalents at the close of the year

617,645

585,563

Net Cash Inflow /(Outflow) from Financing Activities

Note : 1) Cash / Cash Equivalents exclude balances with banks in Margin Money Accounts : 31.3.2008 - Rs.839,305,099/-; 31.3.2007 Rs. 430,185,550/-; 31.3.2006 - Rs. 354,119,733/- and in Escrow Account : 31.3.2008 - Rs. 50,603,784/-; 31.3.2007 - Rs. 51,765,901/-

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman & Managing Director

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman & Managing Director

Ashish Dalal
Partner

Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

Mumbai : May 20, 2008

K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008
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Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
Schedules 1 to 20 annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at and the Profit and
Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2008
1. SHARE CAPITAL

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

Authorised:
7,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each
118,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued:
5,626,320 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up
73,159,805* Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Subscribed:
5,626,320 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up
73,114,129 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each,
fully paid up
731,141
Add : Forfeited Shares,
amounts originally
paid up
116

Reserve Fund:
As per last Account
Add : Transferred from Profit and Loss
Account in terms of Section 45-I C
(i) of Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

70,000
1,180,000

70,000
1,180,000

1,250,000

1,250,000

56,263
731,599

56,263
731,599

787,862

787,862

56,263

56,263

General Reserve :
As per last Account
Add :/(Less):
Adjustement on account of
Employee Benefits
(Net of Tax)
Transferred from Profit and
Loss Account

Add / (Less):
Transferred to Profit and Loss Account
Set aside during the year

Revaluation Reserve:
As per last Account

10,656
5,996
(5,379)
4,171

11,273

1,624,594

1,124,594

(12,001)



300,000

500,000

Profit and Loss Account :
Surplus as per annexed
Profit and Loss Account

731,257

16,084

787,520

1,624,594

139,708

59,475

5,915,957

5,484,621

1,484,075

1,313,075

3. SECURED LOANS [Refer Note 15]

47

47

2,255,468

2,255,468

221,387

a) Debentures
b) Long Term Loans in Indian
Rupees from : #
- Financial Institutions
- Banks
- A Company
- Housing Development Finance
Corporation Ltd.

(129,687)
199,250



562
6,743,382
2,771,536

7,531,881
912,209

10,998,993

9,757,165

# Includes funded interest term loans in respective categories

Fixed Deposits
Inter Corporate Deposits

221,387

Interest accrued and due
Short Term Loan from a Bank

30,000

Sales Tax Deferment Loan
1,266,293

2,755,586
4,539,596
236,137

4. UNSECURED LOANS


170,850

30,000

2,650,590
3,813,191
279,601

c) Working Capital Loans from Banks

50,537

290,950
Capital Redemption Reserve:
As per last Account

2,270

1,912,593

2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Debenture Redemption Reserve:
As per last Account

643

Currency Fluctuation Reserve - On Consolidation
As per last Account
11,273
Add/(Less):
Transferred to Profit and
Loss Account
407
Increase/(Decrease) for the year on
Consolidation
(7,509)

* Includes 28,031 Equity Shares which have been kept
in abeyance by the Stock Exchange Authorities.

Securities Premium Account:
As per last Account

13,814

16,727

116
787,520

Capital Reserve:
As per last Account

16,084

731,141

731,257

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

1,266,293

Finance Lease (including Hire Purchase)
from Companies

509,771

353,934

1,420,374

762,587

53,388

47,554

500,000

__

23,183

23,183

__

5,622

2,506,716

1,192,880
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
5 . FIXED ASSETS [Refer Note 5(c),(d), 6 and 7]
(a) Assets

Rs.000

GROSS BLOCK ( At Cost / Book Value)
As at Additions/
1st April, Adjustments
2007

Goodwill on Consolidation
33,260
Land (Including
Leasehold Land)
1,322,109
Buildings
1,271,850
Plant and Machinery
8,519,325
Furniture,Fixtures,etc.
107,796
Vehicles
49,373
Assets acquired on
Finance Lease :
(including Hire Purchase)
Plant and Machinery
189,124
Vehicles
52,414
Assets given on Lease :
Plant and Machinery
2,323
Share of Joint Venture



DEPRECIATION

Adjustments/
Deductions/
Additions/
As at
Adjustments (Deductions) 31st March,
to Revalued
2008
Assets
33,260 *

38,551 @
1,357 **
64,797

577,444
(115,514)
13,574
3,450
3,355
(50,231)

As at
1st April,
2007

For the Recouped
year during the
(****)
year

















1,359,303
1,336,647
9,212,283
117,920
102,959


411,875
4,388,563
55,787
17,097


37,843
504,219
6,181
4,278


(466)
(42,561)
1,618
(29,193)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
As at
31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2008
2008
2007





33,260

 1,359,303 1,322,109
450,184
886,463
859,975
4,935,343 4,276,940 4,130,762
60,350
57,570
52,009
50,568
52,391
32,276




189,124 $
52,414 $







90,348
24,500

21,390
5,928

111,738
30,428







98,776
27,914



2,323





2,323



2,323









22

3,026





3,048





3,048



22

Total

11,547,574

700,769

116,183



12,132,160

4,990,493

579,861

73,887 *** 5,496,467 6,635,693 6,557,081

Previous years Total

11,252,545

391,242

96,213



11,547,574

4,472,968

567,098

49,573 *** 4,990,493 6,557,081

(b) i) Capital Work-in-Progress, expenditure to date
ii) Capital Work-in-Progress, Share of Joint Venture

2,421,158

568,878

9,223



9,066,074 7,125,959
@
*
**
***
****
$

Pending registration in case of freehold land and pending execution of lease agreement and registration in case of leasehold land.
Represents amount written off on account of amortisation of goodwill on consolidation of accounts [Refer Note 4].
Includes amount written off on account of amortization of leasehold land Rs.1,357,446/- (Previous year Rs.1,357,446/-).
Includes short depreciation in respect of earlier years Rs.468,760/- (Previous year Rs.Nil).
Includes Rs. 31,448/- (Previous year Rs. 9,650) being depreciation directly transferred to pre-operative expenditure.
These assets have been reclassified on account of termination of Hire Purchase Agreement.
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9. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
6. INVESTMENTS, At Cost / Book Value [Refer Note 8 a, b, c]

I.

Long Term Investments:
A. Trade ( Quoted )
B. Trade ( Unquoted )
C. Others ( Quoted )
Less : Provision for diminution in
the value of investments

223,474

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

106

106

864

874
224,937



90,213
223,474

D. Others ( Unquoted )
Less :

332,707

Provision for diminution in the
value of investments

78,478
204,789

254,028

14,460



443,693

Notes :

134,724
332,506

127,918

II. 50% Share of Joint Venture

Cash on hand (including cheques on hand)
Balances with Scheduled Banks :
(i) In Current Accounts
(ii) In Escrow Account
(iii) In Margin Money Accounts
(iv) In Deposit Accounts
Balances with Non-Scheduled Banks :
(i) In Current Accounts
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
Corporation, London
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
Corporation, Dubai
HABIB Bank A.G. Zurich, Dubai
(ii) In Deposit Accounts
HABIB Bank A.G. Zurich, Dubai

Quoted Investments

223,580

134,830

Unquoted Investments

220,113

254,902

443,693

389,732

138,335

Less : Proportionate cost of
facilities written off

Stores, Spares, Fuel, Components and
Engineering Construction Materials
Loose Tools
Stock-in-trade :
Raw Materials
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
Finished Goods for Trade
Equity Shares for Trade
Stock-in-trade of Property
Development Business
Accumulated Contract Costs /
Incomplete Contract Work
Materials-in-transit

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

1,298
1,182,124

738,939

183,781

252,427

36,827

__

1,507,554

1,067,515

31,046
116,923

14,424
118,506

3,800
1,777

5,213
2,856

5,577

8,069

3,906

455,374
1,885

355,368
1,582

896,380
1,688,200
2,114,390
31,286
__

558,820
1,336,566
1,174,375
130
929

912

912

1,492,871
280,119

1,280,914
258,867

6,961,417

4,968,463

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received
[Refer Note 8 (b) and (c)]
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision

4,269
1,671

3,800

149,640

136,730

1,831,425

1,929,281

1,883,295

1,436,457

202,254
(202,254)

202,254
(202,254)


Advance payment of Income-tax
MAT Entitlement Credit
Balances, etc. with 
Port Trust, Central Excise, etc.
Others
50% Share of Joint Venture

8. SUNDRY DEBTORS, (Unsecured) [Refer Note 13]

1,883,295

1,436,457

562,213
321,888

398,551
229,153

8,519
121,160

16,088
118,487
129,679
2,365

134,575
-

4,730,865

4,128,017

2,462,586
3,012,459

1,346,643
2,512,400

582,978
834,884

488,524
837,441

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

1,606,764
259,823

1,584,697
259,823

(259,823)

(259,823)


Others :
Considered good

7,880
9

Loans and Advances
[Refer Note 8 (a), (b), (c) and (d)]

7. INVENTORIES [Refer Note 5 (e)]

Less : Provision

17,964
17

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES, Unsecured, considered
good, unless otherwise specified

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Over six months :
Considered good
Considered doubtful

2,231

1,240

Export Incentives receivable
Interest receivable [Refer Note 8]
Facilities at Customers Site
Opening Balance (at Direct costs,
less amounts written off)
Add : Additions during the year

167,278

76,149

1,123

10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Book Value as at
Market Value as at
31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2008
2007
2008
2007
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000
Rs.000

104,822

91,975
51,766
430,186
153,594

Remittances-in-Transit

(i) All the Investments at I above have been classified by Companies as Long Term
Investments in view of their intention to hold the same on a long term basis.
(ii) Management considers the investment in Stainless India Ltd. to be of a strategic nature.

31st March,
2007
Rs.000

186,472
50,604
839,305
85,399

50% Share of Joint Venture

389,732

31st March,
2008
Rs.000

12. LIABILITIES
Acceptances
Sundry Creditors
Advances against Orders and Engineering
Contracts
Liabilities for Property Development
Interest accrued but not due on
Debentures and Loans


1,606,764

1,584,697

4,101,712

3,841,699

5,708,476

5,426,396

156,398

30,188

Due to Employees Provident Fund (since paid)

7,944

7,370

50% Share of Joint Venture

7,716

-

7,064,965

5,222,566
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16. RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
13. PROVISIONS
for Taxation
for Premium on Redemption of Debentures
for Entitlement of Unavailed Leave
for Excise Duty on Finished Goods Stock
for Warranty Costs
for Others
for Proposed Preference Dividend
for Proposed Equity Dividend
for Tax on Equity / Preference Dividend
14. DEFERRED REVENUE EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Interest and lease compensation
during installation of leased assets
Front-end fees
Others

15. SALES, SERVICES AND
OTHER INCOME
i) Sales
(a) Gross Sales
Less : Excise Duty recovered

31st March,
2007
Rs.000
328,442
375
71,783
98,138
10,441
138
6
73,114
12,427

755,563

594,864

47,549
8,599
440

50,412
52,326
433

56,588

103,171

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

20,646,604
2,612,362

Net Sales
(b) Income from Engineering
Contracts and Job Work
Less : Excise Duty recovered

1,444,410
124,807

2

37

68,690

60,389

5,089

6,260

(f) Income from Hire Purchase Business

Total Sales and Services
Other Income
(a) Sale of Scrap and Sundries
(b) Sales-tax/ VAT Refunds
(c) Gain on variation in foreign exchange rate
(d) Insurance Claims etc.

__

88

2,129

__

19,429,755

18,274,825

42,815

39,062

6,919

49,783

62,180

37,860

3,731

1,586

(e) Credit balances appropriated

13,915

7,252

(f) Other Miscellaneous receipts

30,167

35,799

(g) Excess provisions written back (net)
(Including for Non Performing Assets)

48,202

51,363

(h) Profit on sale of investments

46,250

__

(i) Profit on sale of current investments
(j) Surplus on account of sale of Assets (net)
(k) Rent Received
(l) Dividends (Gross) :
from Trade Investments
from Other Investments

Total Other Income

Employees Remuneration,Benefits and
Other Payments :
Salaries,Wages,Bonus,Compensation
and Other Payments
Contribution towards Employees
State Insurance, Provident,
Gratuity and Other Funds
Welfare Expenses

__

6,326

337

445

12,738

8,725

805
894

Manufacturing, Administrative
and Selling Expenses :
Stores, Spares, Components,
Tools, etc. consumed
Contract execution costs
Power and Fuel consumed
Machining and Processing charges
Sub-contracting expenses
Other Manufacturing expenses
Property Development Expenses
Rent (net)
Hire charges
Rates and Taxes
Insurance (net)
Advertisements
Repairs:
to Buildings
to Plant and Machinery
to Other assets
Commission
Freight and Forwarding (net)
Directors Fees and
Travelling Expenses
Bad Debts,debit balances and
claims written off
Provision for doubtful debts / advances
Diminution in value of Investments
Proportionate cost of facilities written off
Loss on assets discarded
Loss on assets sold (net)
Loss on variation in foreign
exchange rates
Miscellaneous Expenses

Bank Charges
Amortization of Leasehold Land
50% Share of Joint Venture

590
959
1,699

1,549

268,953

239,750

19,698,708

18,514,575
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558,820
10,017,832
2,009

264,398
8,103,605
15,711

10,574,643

8,352,292

896,380

558,820

9,678,263

7,793,472

688,051

595,197

84,304
85,126

54,968
74,931
857,481

1,614,605

(d) Interest from Financing Activities

2006-07
Rs.000

17. OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES

16,593,446

(c) Income from Services rendered

(g) Income from Trading Activities

Less : Closing Stocks

1,778,875
164,270
1,319,603

(e) Income from Property Development
Activities

Opening Stocks
Add : Purchases
Less : Sales / Materials given on loan

19,100,987
2,507,541
18,034,242

Net Income from Engineering
Contracts and Job Work
[Refer Note 12]

ii)

31st March,
2008
Rs.000
437,422
375
58,433
164,190
9,418
178
6
73,114
12,427

2007-08
Rs.000

725,096

3,177,165
875,120
1,277,016
957,263
233,144
104,706
5,089
10,597
18,792
23,809
18,222
3,238

2,889,907
1,257,848
1,280,339
931,694
208,152
91,311
6,260
9,016
15,089
13,573
22,785
2,344

18,976
49,872
20,757

27,388
46,286
35,744

89,605
72,043
637,151

109,418
58,543
666,931

657

610

1,142

49,440
3,906
3,776
2,122

6,044
19,554

4,269
674
6,119

52,608
313,528

36,194
285,440
7,930,139

7,922,114

105,052

79,778

1,357

1,357

1,815

__

8,895,844

8,728,345

20. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS (Contd.)
18. VARIATION IN OPENING AND CLOSING STOCKS
Opening Stocks :
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
For trade :
 Finished Goods
 Equity Shares

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

1,336,566
1,174,375

1,076,999
804,958

130
929

Stock-in-trade of Property
Development Business
Accumulated Contract Costs /
Incomplete Contract Work

BASIS AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
1.

1,090
929
1,059

2,019

912

912

1,280,914

1,036,846

3,793,826

2,921,734

a) The consolidation of accounts is carried out for Mukand Ltd. (Mukand),
its wholly owned subsidiaries, joint venture and associates to meet
the requirements of Clause 32 of the listing agreement with stock
exchanges. Consolidation has been carried out in line with the
requirements of Accounting Standards AS-21  Consolidated Financial
Statements, AS-23  Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements and AS-27  Financial Reporting
of Interests in Joint Ventures.
b) Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) include the
results of four wholly owned subsidiaries, joint venture and three
associates. The names, country of incorporation and proportion of
ownership is given hereunder :
Name of the Company

Closing Stocks :
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
For trade :
 Finished Goods
 Equity Shares

1,688,200
2,114,390
31,286
__

Stock-in-trade of Property
Development Business
Accumulated Contract Costs /
Incomplete Contract Work

31,286

1,059

912

912

1,492,871

1,280,914

5,327,659

3,793,826

81,891

(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks

Mukand Global Finance Ltd.
Vidyavihar Containers Ltd.
Mukand Vijayanagar Steel Ltd.
Mukand International Ltd.
Mukand Bekaert Wire Industries
Pvt. Ltd.
Mukand Engineers Ltd.
Bombay Forgings Ltd.
Stainless India Ltd.

130
929

(1,533,833)

Variation in Excise Duty on
Opening & Closing Stocks of
Finished Goods

1,336,566
1,174,375

(1,451,942)

(872,092 )
30,848

146,826

106,525

973,731

919,638

Interest to Banks and Others

407,231

196,501
1,527,788

1,222,664

105,742
398,424

__
365,874

1,023,622

856,790

Finance Management Charges #

73,101

102,036

Lease Rentals

66,973

67,038

1,163,696

1,025,864

Less :
Interest Capitalised
Interest Income (Gross)

(MGFL)
(VCL)
(MVSL)
(MIL)

India
India
India
UK

100
100
100
100

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

(MBWIPL)
(MEL)
(BFL)
(SIL)

India
India
India
India

50 50:50 Joint Venture
36.11
Associate
24.00
Associate
48.30
Associate

4. The excess of the cost to the Parent Company of its investments in
each of the subsidiaries and associates over its share of equity in the
respective subsidiary/associate, on the acquisition date, is recognised
in the financial statement as goodwill and amortized over a period of
five years. However, such excess or deficit arising after the acquisition
date on account of currency fluctuation in respect of foreign subsidiary
is transferred to Currency Fluctuation Reserve.

2006-07
Rs.000

Interest on Fixed Loans

Consolidated
as

3. Intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits
have been eliminated in preparing these accounts.

(841,244 )

Interest on Debentures

Percentage
of share
holding

2. Significant accounting policies and notes to these Consolidated Financial
Statements are intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure
and a guide to better understanding the consolidated position of the
companies. Recognizing this purpose, the Company has disclosed
only such Policies and Notes from the individual financial statements,
which fairly present the needed disclosures.

19. FINANCE AND LEASE CHARGES
[Refer Note 15]
2007-08
Rs.000

Country of
Incorporation

5 . Statement of significant accounting policies and practices.
a ) Basis of Accounting :
The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles, the applicable
mandatory Accounting Standards and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.
b ) Recognition of Income and Expenditure:

# Includes Proportionate front end fee written off Rs. 53,718,237/- (Previous year
Rs. 100,235,823/-)

i)

Revenues/incomes and costs/expenditure are generally
accounted on accrual as they are earned or incurred.

ii)

Sale of Goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership which is generally on the dispatch of
goods. Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of dates of
On Board Bill of Lading.

iii)

Revenue for long term engineering contract work executed
(including supplies and services) is recognized on the basis of
percentage completion method.

iv) MGFL follows the prudential norms for income recognition and
provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and other nonperforming assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India,
for Non-Banking Finance Companies.
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ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
c) Fixed Assets
All fixed assets except leasehold land are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (other than free hold land for which no
depreciation is provided). However, fixed assets, which are revalued
by Mukand are stated at their revalued book values.

(iii) In respect of forward exchange contracts entered into towards
hedge of foreign currency risks, the difference between the
forward rate and the exchange rate at the inception of the
contract is recognised as income or expenditure over the life of
the contract. Further, the exchange differences arising on such
contracts are recognised as income or expenditure along with
the exchange differences on the underlying assets/liabilities.
Profit or Loss on cancellations/renewals of forward contracts is
accounted for during the year.

d ) Method of Depreciation and Amortisation:
i)

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided :


By Indian companies



on own assets:



on leased assets prior
to 31.03.2001:
On SLM method over the primary
period of lease or at the rates under
Companies Act, 1956, whichever is
higher.

On SLM method and at rates under
the Companies Act, 1956.



By the foreign subsidiary



on methods and at rates applicable under local laws or at
such rates so as to write-off the value of assets over its
useful life.

ii)

Cost of Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

iii)

Cost of technical know-how capitalised is amortised over the
period of agreement or six years whichever is lower.

h) In accordance with the approval obtained by MIL from the Inland
Revenue Department, the currency of accounting of MIL was
changed from GBP to USD from 1.4.1997.
i) Employee Benefits:
(a) Short Term Employee Benefits:
i)

i)

ii)

Inventories are stated at cost or net realisable value whichever
is lower. Construction materials are valued at cost less amount
written off over its estimated useful life. Materials in transit are
valued at cost-to-date.

iii)

Gratuity liability of Mukand is covered under the Gratuitycum-Insurance Policy of Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) by Mukand Employees Gratuity Fund. The present value
of the obligation is determined based on an actuarial
valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial
gains and losses arising on such valuation are recognised
immediately in the Profit and Loss Account. The amount
funded by the Trust administered by Mukand under the
aforesaid Policy, is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plan, to recognise the obligation on a
net basis.
Provident Fund:
Monthly contributions are made to a Trust administered by
Mukand. The interest rate payable by the Trust to the
beneficiaries is notified by the Government. The Company
has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between
the return on investments of the Trust and the notified interest
rate.

Inventories of shares/other securities are valued at lower of
aggregate cost as compared to aggregate market value for
each category of inventories.

(c) Long term compensated absences are provided on the basis of
actuarial valuation.

iv) Cost comprises of all cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition including excise duty payable
on goods produced. Cost formulae used are either first-in,
first-out or average cost as applicable. Due allowance is
estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever
necessary, based on the past experience.

(d) Termination Benefits:
Termination Benefits are charged to Profit and Loss Account in
the year of accrual.
j) Accounting for taxes on Income:

f) Foreign Currency Translations :



For the purpose of consolidation, the amounts appearing in foreign
currency in the financial statements of the foreign subsidiary are
translated at the following rates of exchange:


Average rates for the income and expenditure except
depreciation which is at the year end rate.



The year end rate for the assets and liabilities.
All transactions in foreign currency, are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing as at the date of the transaction.
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Indian Companies
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in
respect of taxable income for the year. Minimum Alternate Tax
(MAT) eligible for set-off in subsequent years (as per tax laws), is
recognized as an asset by way of credit to the Profit and Loss
Account only if there is convincing evidence of its realisation. At
each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of MAT Credit
Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation. The
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by
applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax

g ) Foreign Currency Transactions by Indian Companies:
i)

Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity:

e) Valuation of inventories :

ii)

Defined Contribution Plans:
Mukands contribution to the superannuation scheme,
pension under Employees Pension Scheme, 1995 etc. are
recognised during the year in which the related service is
rendered.

Long term Investments are stated at cost of acquisition or book
value; book value being arrived at after adjusting provisions for
diminution in values of each investment individually, provided, such
diminution is not temporary. While disposing of a part of the holding
of an individual investment, the carrying amount allocated to that
part is determined on the basis of average carrying amount of the
total marketable holding of the investment. Current investments
are stated at lower of cost of acquisition and fair value.
The inventories resulting from intra-group transactions have
been stated at cost by eliminating unrealised profit on such
transactions.

Short term employee benefits are recognised as expenditure
at the undiscounted value in the Profit and Loss Account of
the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Post Employment Benefits:

d ) Investments:

i)

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding
at the close of the year, are converted in Indian currency at the
appropriate rates of exchange prevailing at the close of the
year. The resultant gain or loss is accounted for during the year.

(ii) Borrowing costs on long term funds whenever replaced by current
short-term borrowings by Mukand is capitalized to qualifying asset
as and when the borrowings are utilized for capital expenditure.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, being the difference
between taxable income and accounting income that originate
in one year and which differences are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent years. Deferred tax assets arising on
account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation
under tax laws, are recognised, only if there is a virtual certainty
of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. At each
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets
are reviewed to reassure realisation.

8.

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax is made on the basis of the fringe
benefits provided/deemed to have been provided during the
year at the rates and values applicable to the relevant
Assessment Year.


Foreign Subsidiary
Deferred taxation is provided at appropriate rates on all timing
differences using the liability method only to the extent that
there is a reasonable probability that a liability or asset will
crystalise in the foreseeable future.

(b) MGFL has investments aggregating Rs.197,760,000/- (net of provision
Rs.49,440,000/-) in Preference Shares and Mukand / MGFL / VCL
has loans aggregating to Rs.1,144,038,639/- and interest dues and
other receivables aggregating Rs.75,272,754/- (net of Rs.21,135,000/received during the year) recoverable from investment companies.
The net worth of these companies has eroded. On the undertakings
given by these companies to pay the Principal amount along with
interest upto 31st March, 2003 before the end of financial year 200809, Mukand has agreed to waive interest on these loans w.e.f. 1st
April, 2003. As accounting prudence, Mukand has stopped
recognising this interest income since 1st April, 2003 and VCL has
done so w.e.f. 1st April, 2007. The management believes that ultimate
losses that may result on account of these loans will depend upon
the amount that would be realised from the unsecured financial
assets of these companies. Under the circumstances, being unable
to make an informed judgment, the Auditors have relied upon the
judgment of the management on the classification of the Exposures
as Good and expectation of realisability of the dues from these
companies.

k) Impairment of Assets:
The Carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/
external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset
is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognised in prior
accounting periods is reversed if there has been change in the
estimate of the recoverable amount.
l) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in
measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as
a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow
of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(c) Mukand / MGFL has an investment of Rs.136,758,608/- in equity
shares of Stainless India Limited (SIL) (as associate company). For the
purpose of Consolidation of Accounts, the said value of investment
has been reduced to Rs. Nil by accounting for share of post
acquisition losses. VCL has loans aggregating Rs.471,100,000/-.
Interest dues aggregating Rs.12,577,686/- recoverable from SIL has
been written-off during the year by VCL. Mukand has also trade
debts Rs.145,672,567/- (including considered doubtful and provided
during an earlier year Rs.144,980,561/-), and has trade advances,
aggregating Rs.610,404,764/- [including granted during the year
(net) Rs.118,149,299/- and doubtful and provided in an earlier year
Rs.200,000,000/-] and guarantees amounting to Rs.8,303,000/given to a Bank on behalf of SIL (collectively referred to as
Exposures). Moreover, MGFL has agreed to take over the secured
debt of Rs.279,955,000/- assigned by Industrial Development Bank
of India (IDBI) for a consideration of Rs.125,000,000/- and has paid
the said consideration by 28.2.2008. However, the Deed of
Assignment has been executed by IDBI in favour of MGFL on
29 th April, 2008. Therefore, the said amount has been shown
as advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
in Schedule 11. The Net-Worth of SIL has eroded and a reference
has been filed during an earlier year with BIFR. Although, Mukands/
MGFLs / VCLs Exposure has increased, Mukand / MGFL / VCL
continues to classify the unprovided Exposures as fully realisable,
since, the Management continues to rely on both, the valuation of
unencumbered assets of SIL as at 31 st March, 2008 at

6. Revaluation:
Mukand:
Free-hold land at Kalwe / Dighe, Thane as at 30.6.1983 was revalued
as at 30.6.1984. To reflect the current fair market value, the Company
further revalued the freehold land at Kalwe as at 31.3.2001 during
November, 2001. The registered valuer had carried out the valuation
on the basis of the then market values of these lands. The addition to
assets on account of this revaluation, aggregating Rs.1,143,588,433/was correspondingly credited to the Revaluation Reserve during the
year ended 31st March, 2002.
7.

(i) Fixed assets include net book value of assets at Ginigera Steel Plant
aggregating Rs.24,000,000/- which have been retired from active
use and are held for disposal as tabulated hereunder. The said net
book value is on the basis of realisable value as per valuation report
of an approved valuer.
Assets held for disposal:

Rs.000

Description

As at
1.4.2007

Depreciation
as at
31.3.2008

Net Block
as at
31.3.2008

Plant & Machinery

42,952

18,952

24,000

Loans, Advances, Debts, Investments etc.:
(a) Mukand has investments of Rs.1,929,600/- in Bombay Forgings
Limited (BFL), and Mukand has debts amounting to Rs.802,828,396/(Net of recoveries of Rs.203,753,007/-) due from BFL whose networth has turned positive and BIFR has discharged BFL from
the purview of provisions of SICA. No provision is considered
necessary at present by the management for diminution in value of
investments and possible losses on account of non recovery of
advances and debts since the management relies on the valuation
of unencumbered assets of BFL as at 31 st March, 2008 at
Rs.533,319,000/- and the earnings from the ongoing business of
BFL for recovery of the value of investments and the dues. Under the
circumstances, the Auditors have relied upon the judgment of the
management on the adequacy of the cover, the classification of the
exposures as Good and expectation of full realisability of the
exposures by Mukand.
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(e) MGFL has given loans to, and invested in shares of, certain companies,
which, as at 31st March, 2008, are in excess of the limits specified for
single borrower / investee under the Non-Banking Financial (NonDeposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2007. MGFL is in the process of taking adequate
steps to bring down the excess concentration of the aforesaid
exposures within the specified ceiling specified under paragraph 18
of the said directions.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
Rs.271,956,585/- and the earnings from the ongoing business of
SIL, to be adequate to cover and fully realise the amount of such
Exposures of Mukand / MGFL / VCL. Under the circumstances,
being unable to make an informed judgment, the Auditors have
relied upon the judgment of the management on the adequacy of
the cover, the classification of the unprovided Exposures as Good
and the expectation of full realisability of such Exposures by Mukand/
MGFL / VCL.
(d) I]

(f)

Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans recoverable
from associates and shares held by loanees (stipulated under
clause 32 of the listing agreement with Stock Exchanges).
Rs. 000

Name of the Party

Outstanding amount
As at
As at
31.3.2008
31.3.2007


2,000

Maximum amount
during the Year
2007-08
2006-07

i)

Bombay Forgings Ltd.

2,000

ii)

Lineage Investments Ltd.

206,461

190,691

206,461

190,691

iii)

Catalyst Finance Ltd.

212,744

203,779

212,744

203,779

iv)

Econium Investments &
Finance Ltd.

184,673

153,108

184,673

153,108

v)

Fusion Investments &
Financial Services Ltd.

229,547

220,212

229,547

220,212

vi)

Primus Investments &
Finance Ltd.

158,543

144,468

158,543

144,468

vii)

Conquest Investments &
Finance Ltd.

viii)

Stainless India Ltd.

(g) Investments in Equity Shares of Associaties:
Sr. Name of the Associate
No.

6,000

151,771

147,861

151,771

147,861







158,425

i)

Share of current Profit/(Loss)
Less: Provision for diminution
in value of investments.
ii)

No. of shares held by
Loanee
As at
As at
31.3.2008
31.3.2007

i)

Lineage Investments Ltd.

664.000

664,000

664.000

664,000

ii)

Catalyst Finance Ltd.

647,160

647,160

647,160

647,160

iii)

Econium Investments &
Finance Ltd.

391,760

391,760

391,760

391,760

iv)

Fusion Investments &
Financial Services Ltd.

825,680

825,680

825,680

825,680

v)

Primus Investments &
Finance Ltd.

366,365

366,365

366,365

366,365

vi)

Conquest Investments &
Finance Ltd.

288,320

288,320

288,320

288,320

III]

Share of current (Loss)
iii)

No. of shares held by
Loanee
As at
As at
31.3.2008
31.3.2007

i)

Lineage Investments Ltd.

166,000

166,000

166,000

166,000

Catalyst Finance Ltd.

161,790

161,790

161,790

161,790

iii)

Econium Investments &
Finance Ltd.

97,940

97,940

97,940

97,940

iv)

Fusion Investments &
Financial Services Ltd.

206,420

206,420

206,420

206,420

v)

Primus Investments &
Finance Ltd.

91,591

91,591

91,591

91,591

vi)

Conquest Investments &
Finance Ltd.

72,080

72,080

72,080

72,080

71

3rd Proof Dt. 24/6/2005

As at
31.3.2008

As at
31.3.2007
197,806

17,158

11,487

7,708

5,671



90,213

222,672

124,751

136,759

136,759

(136,759)

(136,759 )







1,929

1,929

82,093
1,451

17,321
64,772

78,478

78,478

6,995

5,544

Note : Share of current profit in Associate Companies is after considering
exceptional income and prior period items.

Maxi. no. of shares
held by Loanee
during the year
2007-08
2006-07

ii)

Bombay Forgings Limited
Share of post acquisition accumulated
Profits
Share of current Profit
Less : Provision for diminution in
value of investments

Preference Shares held by the loanees in the capital of Mukand:

Name of the Loanee

Stainless India Limited
Including Goodwill of Rs.70,161 thousands.
Share of post acquisition
accumulated Losses

Maxi. no. of shares
held by Loanee
during the year
2007-08
2006-07

Rs.000

Mukand Engineers Limited
197,806
Including Goodwill of Rs.79,883 thousands.
Share of post acquisition accumulated
Profits/Reserves

II] Equity Shares held by the loanees in the capital of Mukand:
Name of the Loanee

VCL has entered into a development agreement for its land at
Vidyavihar for a consideration of residential flats to be made available
to VCL at the developers own cost and an additional consideration
as compensation payable for Government dues. During FY2005-06,
VCL received Rs.230 million against such compensation. Advances
received against reservation/allotment of flats and deposits received
in this regard has been included in the current liabilities.

pending at different stages in proceedings under The
Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. These employees are statutorily
not covered by The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and many
of the employees are also not covered by The Industrial
Disputes Act, 1947. Liability arising therefrom cannot
therefore, be determined at present.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
9. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
i)

Disputed matters in appeal/contested
in respect of:
- Income Tax (Interest if any, unascertained)
- Excise Duty, Customs Duty etc.
- Sales Tax, Works Contract Tax etc.
- Other matters

ii)

Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debts

iii)

Bills discounted with the Bankers and
others - Sale Bills discounted

iv)

Guarantees and Counter guarantees
given on behalf of :
- Associates
- Others

v)

31.3.2008 31.3.2007
Rs.000
Rs.000
27,784
30,324
149,670
5,903

66,327
38,129
147,723
6,197

228,490

59,807

58,891

65,777

8,303
776,899

221,690
703,625

Bonds / Undertakings given by
Mukand under concessional duty/
exemption to Customs / Excise Authorities
(Net of redemption applied for)
6,569

6,569

vi)

Bonds given by Mukand against import
of machinery under EPCG Scheme

vii)

Share in the contingent liabilities
of Associates

243,650

188,097

34,691

38,020

xiii) Government of Maharashtra has served a Demand Notice
on Mukand for payment of electricity duty for power
generated during the period 1.4.2000 to 30.4.2005 and
penal interest thereon in Mukands Captive Power Plant
amounting to Rs.142,743,646/-. The Writ Petition filed by
Mukand is pending disposal by the Honble Bombay High
Court which is awaiting the decision of the Honble Supreme
Court of India in respect of Writ Petitions filed by other Captive
Power Producers.
xiv) Under provisions of an Order dt. 16 th August, 2006 issued
by the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(MERC), it is mandatory for Mukands grid synchronised
captive power plant to use a minimum of 4% renewable
energy like wind power, co-generation etc. in its total
consumption of energy generated from its own captive
power plant for the FY 2007-08 or alternatively pay a penalty
of Rs.5/- per KWH of the shortfall in use of renewable energy
to the monitoring/implementing agency viz., Maharashtra
Energy Development Agency. The aforesaid Order is being
contested before MERC. The liability that may arise on
consumption of captive power during FY 2007-08 is
estimated at Rs,21,553,090/-

viii) Liability to Mukand that may arise on account of loss on
realisation of assets in terms of the agreement and out of
pending litigations referred in the agreement for sale of
shares of Kalyani Mukand Ltd  Amount not ascertained at
present. In the matter of pending litigations, the arbitral
tribunal has given an award whereby no liabilities devolve
on Mukand. The said award has been challenged in the
High Court.

10. A claim towards difference in price of calibrated iron ore for the
period 1 s t April, 2006 to 28 t h February, 2007 amounting to
Rs.330,678,120/- has been raised by a supplier on Mukand in
March 2007. Mukand has been legally advised that the supplier
cannot seek this price revision under a concluded agreement and
hence no provision is made in the Accounts. The issue is referred
to an arbitral tribunal, whose award is awaited. Moreover, the said
supplier has also unilaterally increased the price of iron ore w.e.f.
1 s t April, 2007. This issue too is to be settled by the aforesaid
arbitral tribunal. However, pending determination of final price,
the supplier has raised invoices at an ad-hoc interim price, which
liability, has been accounted.

ix) Undertakings given by Mukand during the F.Y. 1999-2000
for indemnifying the acquirer of the shares of Metso
Minerals Mumbai (Pvt.) Ltd., in the event of non-fulfillment
of covenants under the transactions. Claims which arose
on completion of certain Sales Tax assessments aggregating
Rs.231,627/- have been duly accounted during an earlier
year. No further amounts have been claimed during the
year.
x)

11. a)

There have been delays in payment of tax deducted at
source by Mukand. Interest payable on delays has been
accounted for in respect of cases where appropriate orders
have been received from Income Tax authorities.

b)

31.3.2008
Rs.000

Estimated amount of contracts
remaining to be executed on Capital
Account and not provided for
1,425,526

31.3.2007
Rs.000
84,674

Operating lease :
Lease assistance facilities of Rs.150,000,000/- (utilisation by
way of advances to the suppliers of equipment as at 31.3.2008
Rs.35,731,649/-) from Infrastructure Leasing and Financial
Services Limited to Mukand is to be secured by way of equitable
mortgage on the Companys one residential premises at
Mumbai.

xi) The Lenders of Mukand have a right to recompense upto
12% per annum in excess of the effective IRR charged in
Financial Restructuring Package for initial eight years.
xii) The matter relating to emoluments of staff and officers of
Mukand which was remitted by the Honble Supreme Court
to the Industrial Tribunal for adjudication afresh according
to the law, has been disposed off by the said Tribunal by
way of a fresh award on the dispute referred to it. Mukand
has implemented the said award during the previous year.
The said award is under challenge in the High Court of
Bombay by way of a Writ Petition, and is pending disposal.

c)

Future Rental obligations in respect of premises taken on lease.
Rs.000
1. For a period not later than one year.
2. For a period later than one year and not
later than five years.
3. For a period later than five years.

Demand for Annual Bonus for the financial years 1995-96
to 2006-07 by Staff and Officers Association of Mukand is

Total

4,233
242
4,475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
12. a)

Disclosure regarding Income from Engineering
Contracts of Mukand :
(i)

b)

the purposes of CFS, Hospet Steels Ltd. has not been included.
Wherever, due to the terms of the alliance, estimations are required
to be made in respect of expenses, liabilities, production, etc., the
same have been relied upon by the auditors, being technical
matters.

Rs.000

The amount of Contract revenue recognised
as revenue during the year.

583,994

(ii) The aggregate amount of costs incurred and
recognised profits (less recognised losses)
upto 31.3.2008.

6,894,556

(iii) The amount of advances received (Gross)



(iv) The amount of retentions (included in
sundry debtors) (net balance)



1 5 . Effect and Progress of Restructuring Package
In terms of the Financial Restructuring Package (FRP) for Mukand
approved by the Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell in July 2003,
the terms of security, redemption and conversion have been
rescheduled. A separate disclosure is made hereunder to explain
the same, as also the progress made so far :

The management has, keeping in view the accounting policy
adopted by Mukand technically determined the realisable value
of Accumulated Direct Costs (including incidental income by
way of disposal of plant and equipment at the end of the
contract) compared to relatable revenues and claims raised by
the Company in respect of its Road Construction Contracts.
Although the outcome of the Road Construction activity cannot
be estimated with reliability at present, it is the opinion of the
management that in view of the substantially large claims by
Mukand for incremental jobs executed, escalations and time
over-runs, losses currently expected are already recognized till
the close of the year. Since realization of these claims is a
judgmental matter, on which auditors are not able to make an
informed judgment, the auditors have placed reliance on the
Managements judgment of losses currently expected,
realisability of claims and determination of the period in which
further losses if any, should be entirely recognized and fully
expensed.

a. Promoters / Associates of Mukand have pledged 11,426,514
equity shares in Mukand and 546,652 cumulative redeemable
preference shares out of their share-holding in Mukand.
b. Pledge of Promoters holding of shares of Bajaj Auto Limited to
the tune of Rs.211 million.
c. Mukand shall ensure balance realization of non-core assets
and investments aggregating Rs.1,503.60 million (net of
amounts realized till 31.3.2008) over a specified time schedule
ending on 31st March, 2010.
d. The principal term debt would be repaid in 144 monthly
installments commencing from April 2006 and ending in March,
2018 with a pre-determined ballooning schedule. Installments
due during the year have been paid.
e. Interest / lease rentals payable on all the principal term debt for
the period from 1st April, 2002 to 30th September, 2004 have
been converted into Future Funded Interest Term Loan (FFITL)
and would be repaid in 96 installments commencing from April
2005 and ending in March, 2013 with a ballooning schedule.
Installments due during the year have been paid.

13. Mukand had entered into an agreement dated 31 st March, 1998 to
sell 500,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each of Kalyani Mukand Ltd.,
for an aggregate consideration of Rs.69,375,000/-. Under the terms
of the said agreement, the sale of shares was based on certain
conditions to be complied with subsequent to sale, and which
conditions have been fulfilled.
Since the sale and transfer of the shares were considered to be
legally complete upon execution of the Agreement of Sale of
shares, Mukand had taken credit for the consideration aggregating
Rs.69,375,000/-, during the Accounting Year 1997-98. Mukand
has, upto the close of the Accounting Year 2007-08, received
amounts aggregating Rs.39,971,860/- against the aggregate
consideration of Rs.69,375,000/-.

f. Debts of about Rs.118 million were to be converted into equity.
CDR has waived this condition on Mukand repaying debt along
with interest @ 18% per annum compounded on quarterly basis
w.e.f. 1 s t April, 2002. Mukand, over the years has been
accounting for interest @ 10.50% per annum compounded on
quarterly basis. The difference in interest payable amounting
to Rs. 92,112,526/- has been accounted during the year
including Rs.22,841,390/- for the year and Rs.69,271,136/- for
earlier years which is included in prior period adjustments.

14. Mukand had, during the Financial Year 1998-99, entered into a
strategic alliance with Kalyani Group companies, which alliance
operates through a Company  Hospet Steels Limited.

g. Lenders shall have a right of recompense upto 12% per annum
in excess of the effective IRR charge in FRP for initial 8 years.

Expenses and liabilities arising out of this alliance are shared on
the basis stipulated in the relevant Agreements, and its accounting
in the books of Mukand is carried out, accordingly. Therefore, for

h. In the event of default, as defined in the restructuring package,
the lenders have the right to cancel, suspend, reduce or modify
all or any of the relief and concessions or vary the terms and
conditions thereof.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
16. Segment Information for the year ended 31st March, 2008
A. Business Segment:
Rs. 000

16. Segment Information for the year ended 31st March, 2007
A. Business Segment:
Rs. 000

Particulars

Particulars

Steel

Industrial
Road
Machinery Construction

Other
Products

Eliminations

Total

Segment Revenue:
External Revenue
Inter-Segment Revenue

19,061,210
41,072

2,320,297
421,078

583,994


201,423
5,525

 22,166,924
(467,675)


Total Revenue

19,102,282

2,741,375

583,994

206,948

(467,675) 22,166,924
2,737,169

Less: Excise Duty
Net Revenue

Total Revenue
Less: Excise Duty

19,429,755

Segment Results before
interest and tax:
1,538,483
Inter Segment Margin
Total Segment Results
before interest and tax:
1,538,483
Less: Unallocated Expenses
(net of Income)
Add: Share of Profit in Associates
Less: Finance and Lease Charges
Add: Exceptional Items (net)
(Including share in
Associates)
Less: Short Provision for tax
Less: Provision for taxes
Net Profit
Other Information
Segment Assets
Un-allocated Assets
Total Assets
Segment Liabilities
Un-allocated Liabilities
(Including Loan Funds)
Total Liabilities

Segment Revenue:
External Revenue
Inter-Segment Revenue

20,147,759

4,752,049

(151,484)


27,692
(14,866)


(53,112)

2,031,873


685,160

(151,484)

12,826

(53,112)

2,031,873

34,613
(1,101)
(312,929)
536,393

1,171,733

182,480 1,907,836

Depreciation & Amortisation
Segment Depreciation &
Amortisation
527,168
Un-allocated Depreciation
& Amortisation
Total Depreciation & Amortisation

539

158,126

8,931

580

996

Other Information
Segment Assets
Un-allocated Assets
Total Assets
Segment Liabilities
Un-allocated Liabilities
(Including Loan Funds)
Total Liabilities



25,783,119
2,841,188
28,624,307
(480,121) 7,533,977

41,182

23

156



1,811







Un-allocated Non-Cash
Expenditure
Total Significant Non-Cash Expenditure

Segment Revenue
Carrying cost of Segment Assets
Additions to Fixed Assets & Intangible Assets

17,721,157
67,500

2,118,913
111,375

903,287


203,279
11,160


(190,035)

20,946,636


17,788,657

2,230,288

903,287

214,439 (190,035)

20,946,636
2,671,811
18,274,825

15,363,020

2,948,224

(195,941)


50,334
(15,536)


(41)

2,268,230


485,326

(195,941)

34,798

(41)

2,268,230
(91,457)
(28,405)
(985,840)

28,219
(465)
(218,749)
971,533
1,591,944 2,225,325 1,395,670

1,025,977

637,853

39,260
618,352

1,142

Significant Non-Cash Expenditure
Segment Non-Cash
Expenditure
3,182

579,092

469,749
15,577

295,022 1,948,240

(374)

(656,664)

20,575,585
2,770,398
23,345,983
5,560,799
11,513,043
17,073,842

Depreciation & Amortisation
Segment Depreciation &
Amortisation
515,449
Un-allocated Depreciation
& Amortisation
Total Depreciation & Amortisation

62,097

2,254

317



702,521
9,964
712,485

6,083

41,828

3,354



566,714
39,263
605,977

541

32

6,017



Un-allocated Non-Cash
Expenditure
Total Significant Non-Cash Expenditure

49,440
50,582

B. Geographical Segment:

Total

Capital Expenditure
Segment Capital Expenditure
Un-allocated Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure

2,556,993
5,279
2,562,272

Notes:
1. Finance and Lease Charges excludes interest charged to Segment Results (net of eliminations) Rs.43,857,771/-.
2. Segment Result is after adjusting prior period items.
3. Share of Profit in Associates is after considering prior period items.

Particulars

Eliminations

Segment Results before
interest and tax:
1,944,088
Inter Segment Margin
Total Segment Results
before interest and tax:
1,944,088
Less: Unallocated Expenses
(net of Income)
Less: Share of Loss in Associates
Less: Finance and Lease Charges
Add: Exceptional Items (net)
(Including share in
Associates)
Less: Short Provision for tax
Less: Provision for taxes
Net Profit

(115,146)
18,921
(1,119,838)

1,741,860 2,491,817 1,401,683

Industrial
Road
Other
Machinery Construction Products

Net Revenue

14,386,853
21,920,830

Capital Expenditure
Segment Capital Expenditure
2,397,715
Un-allocated Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure

Significant Non-Cash Expenditure
Segment Non-Cash
Expenditure

617,182
67,978

Steel

9,772
3,192
12,964

Notes:
1. Finance and Lease Charges excludes interest charged to Segment Results (net of eliminations) Rs.40,024,175/-.
2. Segment Result is after adjusting prior period items.
3. Share of loss in Associates is after considering prior period items.

Rs. 000
India

Rest of the
World

Total

20,326,221
25,664,602
2,556,903

1,840,703
118,517
90

22,166,924
25,783,119
2,556,993

B. Geographical Segment:
Particulars
Segment Revenue
Carrying cost of Segment Assets
Additions to Fixed Assets & Intangible Assets

Rs. 000
India

Rest of the
World

Total

19,480,767
20,429,168
702,521

1,465,869
146,417


20,946,636
20,575,585
702,521
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16. Segment Information (Contd.)
(C) Other Disclosures:
1.

b) Prior period adjustments represents:

Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting
Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) taking into account
the organizational structure as well as the differential risk
and returns of these segments.

2. Business segment has been disclosed as primary segment.
3. Types of products and services in each business segment:
i) Steel  billets, blooms, rounds, wire rods, bars, rods
and sections, bright bars and wires of special & alloy
steel and stainless steel.
ii) Industrial Machinery - EOT and other cranes, steel
structurals, material handling equipment, processing
plant and equipment, etc.
iii) Long Term Engineering Contracts - Road Construction.
iv) Other products  Comprise Segments of Heavy
Castings, property development, income from
operations of Non-banking Financial Activities.

310

2,287

(ii) Credit relating to earlier years

(240)

(1,549)

(iii) Depreciation adjustments (Net)

469



(iv) Share in Associates

146

(3,801)

69,271



69,956

(3,063)

Total

18. Mukand has adopted Accounting Standard 15 on employee benefits
w.e.f. 1.4.2007. Pursuant to the adoption, the transitional liability
amounting to Rs.18,180,247/- towards gratuity (net of deferred tax
Rs.6,179,466/-) has been adjusted against the general reserve as at 1st
April, 2007 as required under the Standard.
19. Related Party Disclosures:
(a) Relationship:
(i)

4. Inter segment revenues are recognized at sales price/cost.

17. a ) Exceptional Items shown in the Profit and Loss Account:

(i)

Compensation to a customer

(ii) Amortization of goodwill arising on
consolidation.
(iii) Share in Associates

2006-07
Rs.000
51,041

33,260

33,263

9,762



12,578



55,600

84,304

Bad Debts/Bad Advances/Doubtful
Debts which were written-off/provided
earlier recovered during the year.



6,562

ii) Provision for diminution in the value of
Investments written back.

90,213

62,195



43,766

Total

90,213

112,523

Net Total

34,613

28,219

(iv) Irrecoverable interest written off
Total

(ii)

iii) Share in Associates.

(iii) Relatives of key management personnel and enterprises in
which significant influence can be exercised by persons at (ii)
above or their relatives where transactions have taken place:
Viren J. Shah, Bansri R. Shah.
Note : Related party relationship is as identified by Mukand and
relied upon by the Auditors.
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Key Management Personnel:
Niraj Bajaj, Rajesh V. Shah, Suketu V. Shah, Vinod S. Shah.

Income:
i)

Related parties where control / significant influence exists:
Mukand Engineers Ltd., Bombay Forgings Ltd., Stainless India
Ltd., Hospet Steels Ltd., Kalyani Mukand Ltd., Lineage Investments
Ltd., Catalyst Finance Ltd., Econium Investments & Finance Ltd.,
Fusion Investments & Financial Services Ltd., Primus Investments
& Finance Ltd., Conquest Investments & Finance Ltd., Jamnalal
Sons Pvt. Ltd., Mukand Bekaert Wire Industries Pvt. Ltd.

5. The Segment Information include the respective amounts
identifiable to each of the segments and amounts allocated
on a reasonable basis.

2007-08
Rs.000


2006-07
Rs.000

(i) Debit relating to earlier years

(v) Difference in interest payable to
Lenders [Refer note 15(f)]

The segments as reported above include trading activity of
the respective segments.

Expenditure:

2007-08
Rs.000

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

Nature of transactions

a (i)
above

(b) Details of transactions with the related parties referred in (a)
above:
Rs.000
Nature of transactions
Related parties as referred in
a (i)
above
1

6

a (iii)
above

Purchases:
 Raw Material
 Stores
 Semi Finished goods

2

a (ii)
above

Sales:

64,331
(165,247)
4
(1,859)
167,399
(33,682)

7

 Stores

614
(151)
 Semi Finished/Finished Goods 218,600
(188,558)
3

Expenditure:
 Rent






180
()
Interest paid
31,543
(26,404)
Sub-Contracting Expenses
7,540
(39,766)
Service Charges
14,563
(5,904)
Share of expenses
277,521
under an alliance
(179,774)
Remuneration

 EDP Data Processing
Services
 Equipment Hire chages

4

42,000
(42,000)
466
()
 Conversion charges
13,729
(12,103)
 Rebates and Allowances

(51,041)
 Irrecoverable interest written off 12,578
()
 NPA written off

(5,925)
 Interest Income reversal- NPA

(4,479)
Income:

217
(217)
8

11,108
(9,963)

1,751
(1,456)

a (iii)
above

3,662
(6,833)
 Reimbursement of expenses
-on account of deputation
(620)
of employees
Investments, Finance & Advances:
 Loans repaid by Loanees
23,135
(163,433)
 Loans taken
165,300
(50,100)
 Loans/Advances given
59,235
(279,385)
 Loans repaid
121,392
(including interest)
(45,700)
 Investment in shares
10,000
(100)
 Application money for shares 50,000
()
 Divestment in shares
10
()
Outstanding balances at the
close of the year:
 As debtors
949,076
Less : Provision for
doubtful debts
144,981
Debtors
804,095
(net of provision)
(777,272)
 As Creditors
2
(34,695)
 Loans & Advances2,490,632 #
Receivables (incl. Interest)
Less : Provision for
doubtful advances
200,000
Loans & Adv.
2,290,632
(net of provision)
(2,174,432)
 Loans & Advances111,201
Payables (incl. Interest)
(50,489)
 Property Deposits given

44
(13)


(1,500)

650
(650)

 Property Deposits
received back
 Term Loan incl. Interest
178,179
(incl. Interest)
(194,471)
 Guarantees given
8,303
by Mukand
(221,690)
 Counter Guarantees given
60,000
on behalf of Mukand
(60,000)
 Collateral given on behalf
**
of Mukand
(**)

876
(900)
 Interest received
72,707
(114,781)
 Service Charges
1,473
(1,336)
 Conversion/machining Charges 11,898
()
 Other miscellaneous
414
(335)
Other payments:
 Reimbursement of expenses
2
(18)
 Reimbursement of expenses
127
on account of deputation
(156)
of employees

a (ii)
above

Other receipts:
 Reimbursement of expenses

 Property Deposit taken

 Rent

5

Rs.000
Related parties as referred in

1,500
(2,000)

***
(***)

Figures in bracket relate to previous year.
** 3,869,089 Equity Shares and 546,652 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Mukand.
*** 3,869,089 Equity Shares of Mukand.
# includes Rs.84,910,639/- on which interest income not accounted by Mukand out of
prudence.
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b) MGFL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

Particulars

20. Computation of Profit / Loss for Earnings per Share:

Profit
Less : Preference Share Dividend and
tax thereon
Profit including exceptional items
attributable to Equity Shares
Less: Exceptional items
(Net of tax)
Profit excluding exceptional items
attributable to Equity Shares

2007-08
Rs.000

2006-07
Rs.000

536,393
7

971,533
7

536,386
34,613

971,526
26,668

501,773

Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
Depreciation
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation
Net Deferred Tax Asset

944,858

21. Deferred Taxation:
a) Mukand
Components of Deferred tax assets/liabilities are as under:
Charge / (Credit)
As at for the year
As at
31.3.2007
2007-08 31.3.2008
Rs000
Rs.000
Rs000
Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax liability on account of:
a) Depreciation
1,353,595
(68,001) 1,285,594
b) Others
159,404
39,344
198,748
1,512,999

(28,657)

1,484,342

(5,792)

72,231

Deferred Tax Asset on account of:
a) Employee benefits, etc.
66,439
b) Taxes, Duties, Cess, Interest
to Banks/FIs, etc.
456,783
c) Provision for doubtful debts 157,060
d) Unabsorbed Depreciation/
Business Loss, etc.
479,270
e) Others
46,960

59,494
--

397,289
157,060

266,715
(3,625)

212,555
50,585

1,206,512

316,792

889,720

306,487

288,135

594,622

Net Deferred Tax Liability

Charge/
(Credit) for
the year
2007-08

1
47
72
120

1
(8)
(17)
(24)

-55
89
144

-120

115
91

115
29

c)

MIL
Deferred taxation is provided at appropriate rates on all timing differences using the liability method only to the extent that there is a
reasonable probability that a liability or asset will crystalise in the
foreseeable future.

d)

VCL
Deferred tax asset aggregating Rs.119,162,306/- arising on account
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation has not
been recognised, considering the principle of virtual certainty as
stated in the Accounting Standard AS-22  Accounting for taxes on
income, as the future realization from property development cannot
be ascertained at present.

22. Figures less than Rs.500/- have, wherever necessary, been shown at
actuals in brackets since all the figures have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand.
23. Previous years figures have been regrouped/recast wherever
necessary.
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of
Dalal & Shah
Niraj Bajaj
Chartered Accountants
Chairman &
Managing Director
Ashish Dalal
Partner
Mumbai : May 20, 2008
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Rs.000
Up to
31.3.2008

As at
31.3.2007

Rajesh V. Shah
Co-Chairman &
Managing Director
Vinod S. Shah
Whole-time Director

Suketu V. Shah
Joint Managing Director
K. J. Mallya
Company Secretary
Mumbai, May 20,2008

DETAILS OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2008 AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2008 OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES.
Indian Subsidiaries
Sl.
No.

PARTICULARS

Mukand Global
Finance Limited

Vidyavihar
Containers Limited

Rs.000
Foreign Subsidiary

Mukand Vijayanagar
Steel Limited

Mukand International
Limited.

1

Share Capital

117,495

119,676

700

2

Reserves and Surplus

326,405

2,689



7,687

3

Total Assets

118,907

69,823

47,213

4

Accumulated Losses

5

Total Liabilities

6

Investments in shares

7

Turnover and Other Income

8

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation

5,453

9

Provision for Taxation
(including for earlier years)

2,251 *

10

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation

3,202

11

Proposed Dividend

@ Includes deferred tax assets (net)

1,458,326 @


(2,053,351 )

39,526



(567)

2,172,258

69,823

47,780

204,439

90





121,536

40,586



1,743,318

1,458,326

(12,601 )
8
(12,609 )







18,838



5,069



13,769





* Includes provision for deferred tax.

Note:- In respect of foreign subsidiary :
a)

Item nos. 1 to 6 are translated at exchange rate as on 31st March, 2008, of US $ 1 = Rs. 40.12

b)

Item nos. 7 to 10 are translated at annual average exchange rate of US $ 1 = Rs. 40.23

The above details have been annexed in terms of approval Letter No. 47/177/2008-CL-III dated 9/4/2008 issued by Government of India, Ministry of
Company Affairs under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956.
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NOTES
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